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CANADIAN LAWYERS LIABILITY ASSURANCE SOCIETY  
(“CLLAS”) 

 
 

 8:30 a.m. 
 Davies Ward Phillips & Vineberg LLP 

44th Floor, 1 First Canadian Place 
Toronto, Ontario 

 
Tuesday, February 24, 2009 

 
Present: 
 

Nicholas Leblovic (Chairman) Davies Ward Phillips & Vineberg LLP 
Glenn Leslie Blake Cassels & Graydon LLP 
Robert Love Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Gord Goodman Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
Donald Milner Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Chris Woodbury Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP 
Gale Rubenstein 
Malcolm Mercer 

Goodmans LLP 
McCarthy Tetrault LLP 

Julia Holland Torys LLP 
Les O’Connor WeirFoulds LLP 
Frank Palmay Lang Michener LLP 
  
Patrick Mahoney Dion, Durrell + Associates 
Norma Ibbetson Dion, Durrell + Associates 
Joe Tontini Dion, Durrell + Associates 
Ryan Durrell Dion, Durrell + Associates 
  

 
 

1. Constitution of Meeting 
 

 The Chairman brought the meeting to order.   
 
 

2. Appointment of Secretary 
 
 Norma Ibbetson acted as Secretary. 
 
 
3. Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2008  Meeting of the Advisory Board 
 

It was moved by Chris Woodbury and seconded by Gale Rubenstein that the minutes of the 
December 9, 2008 meeting of the Advisory Board be approved.   The motion was carried 
unanimously. 
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4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes 
 

Items arising out of the minutes will be dealt with under the other agenda items. 
 
 
5. Comments of the Chair 

 
Website: 
 
Ryan Durrell was introduced.  A demo of the website is to be held at the end of the meeting. 
 
General Liability: 
 
Joe Tontini will be reviewing the results of this project later in the meeting.  Each firm will receive a 
report personalized to their firm. 
 
Commercial Market Update: 
 
Prior to the meeting, the Chair circulated a memo from Bob Wilson providing a market update.  
CLLAS is well positioned with the two-year policy. 
 
Reinsurance Ratings and Security: 
 
Joe Tontini will provide an update later in the meeting.  Part of the up-coming renewal process will be 
an analysis on security of our reinsurers – both incumbents and new markets.  This analysis may result 
in the desire to shiftmarket share amongst reinsurers.  The London trip to meet with reinsurers is 
planned for May. 
 
Restructuring: 
 
There is a further meeting planned with advisor to review options. 
 
Annual Dinner: 
 
There was a brief discussion on venue and timing.  The Chair requested feedback with respect to the 
dinner and a possible move to April.   
 
 

6. Report of the General Manager’s Office 
 

Financial Statements Quarter Ending December 31, 2008 
 
Patrick Mahoney reported to the Board.   
 
Overall CLLAS had a good year.  Premiums were reduced as reinsurance costs came down.  A $2.8 
million underwriting gain (i.e. premiums less claims and expenses) was experienced.  Investment 
income overall was similar to last year. 
 
The market melt-down which occurred in the latter part of the year had little effect on CLLAS as 
bonds did well during the period.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) shows the 
unrealized gains and losses imbedded in CLLAS’ investment portfolio.  At December 31, 2008, 
CLLAS had unrealized gains of $1.4 million, up from previous year’s $92,000 
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Mr. Mahoney pointed out the reinsurance recoverable of $10.7 million, which was largely attributable 
to the reinsurance arbitration.  He noted that dates for the arbitration were being set in the Fall of 
2009. 
 
Actuarial Report 
 
Copies of the Valuation Report and the presentation of the Actuary were distributed to the Board. 

  
 Appointment of the Actuary for 2009 
 
It was moved by Gordon Goodman and seconded by Gail Rubenstein that Julie-Linda Laforce 
of Dion Durrell + Associates Inc. be appointed the Actuary for 2009.  The motion was carried 
unanimously. 

  
 2009 Budget 

  
(Joe Tontini joined the meeting.) 
 
Patrick Mahoney reviewed the attachment which provides comparables between the budget and the 
actual for FY08 as well as the proposal for FY09. 
 
It was moved by Gordon Goodman and seconded by Les O’Connor that the 2009 Budget be 
approved.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
Surplus Management/Financial Modeling 
 
The static surplus policy has not been updated to reflect increase in retention.  The Peer Review 
undertaken by Towers Perrin last year also included recommendations to perform regular capital 
adequacy testing (DCAT) and a regular evaluation of CLLAS’ reinsurance exposure. 
 
The Board materials included a proposal from Dion Durrell for enhancing the financial modeling of 
CLLAS.  The expectation is to  complete the work in advance of the reinsurance renewal. 
 
It was moved by Frank Palmay and seconded by Gale Rubenstein that the financial modeling 
proposal be approved.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
Reinsurance Ratings 
  
Joe Tontini discussed an exhibit showing the updated security ratings for the current CLLAS 
reinsurers under his February 9, 2009 memo to the Board.  He was asked whether we can track 
summary by branch – i.e. Canadian branches vs. Canadian companies.  He indicated that he would 
work with Miller on providing additional analysis. 
 
Mr. Tontini mentioned that OSFI was reviewing its rules with respect to unlicensed insurers and 
“doing business in Canada” and that this review might adversely affect Lloyds, among others.  Dion 
Durrell was reviewing the situation and discussing with Lloyds and other potentially affected 
reinsurers.  The target date for implementation is January 2010 meaning that the up-coming July 1, 
2009 renewal is affected.  More information will be forthcoming.   
 
General Liability Policy Review 
 
Joe Tontini reviewed his handout, “Comparison of Limits and Rates”.  The consensus was to use the 
information provided on an individual basis for existing renewals and look at further options at the 
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September meeting.  Nick Leblovic will circulate the e-mail and firms can report back to Joe Tontini 
on their renewals. 
 
Patent and Trademark Cover 
 
Some firms still buy their Patent and Trademark cover separately while others utilize the CLLAS 
cover.  Consideration is being given ot broadening the definition of the incidental practice to cover the 
patent and trademark filings.  Mr. Tontini and Mr. Leblovic are to work on coverage definition for 
July 1, 2009. 
 
(Mr. Tontini left the meeting.) 
 

 
8.  Report of the Claims Committee 
  
 Patrick Mahoney reported on the Claims Activity. 

 
 

9. Report of the Risk Management Committee 
 

Bill Scott circulated a memo providing an update.  The Committee is working on the appropriate 
policy for “re-auditing” firms that have been audited by John Walker.  One possibility is targeted 
audits, i.e. audits dependent on claim frequency or other issues.  It was noted that the Committee had 
discussed the policy on Guidelines for Securities Trading and had concluded that it was not 
appropriate to mandate that each firm have such a policy in place. 
 
 

10. Report of the Audit Committee 
 
Donald Milner reported that the notes to the financial statements had been changed to reflect new 
accounting requirements.  He said that Deloittes had issued a clean audit opinion. 
 
It was moved by Donald Milner and seconded by Gordon Goodman that the financials 
statements at December 31, 2008 be adopted.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Donald Milner and seconded by Frank Palmay that Deloitte be appointed 
auditor for the 2009 fiscal year.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
It was noted that FSCO was requiring a status report on the impact of International Financial 
Reporting Standards by the end of February with updates every six months.  The 2009 Business Plan 
will also need to be filed with the FSCO before the end of February.  Both filings were included in the 
Board materials. 

 
 
11. Report of the Policy Committee 
 

Patrick Mahoney reported that the Committee is looking into processing some issues driven by the 
management of claims.  
 
 

12. Report of the Restructuring Committee 
 
There was nothing to report at this time. 
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13. December 31, 2008 Investment Manager’s Report – Confirmation of Investment Guidelines 

 
Patrick Mahoney reported.  Included in the Board material is a report from the investment managers 
commenting on security of individual bonds and how security selections are made, as well as a 
summary of the benchmarking changes made subsequent to the Board approval to implement changes 
at the December 2008 meeting. 

 
 
14. Other Business 
 

There was a demonstration of the CLLAS Website which is slated to be live by the end of June 2009. 
 
 

15. Next Meeting 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board will be on June 16, 2009. 
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was terminated. 
 
 
 
 

   
Chairman  Secretary 
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CANADIAN LAWYERS LIABILITY ASSURANCE SOCIETY  
(“CLLAS”) 

 
 

 8:30 a.m. 
 Davies Ward Phillips & Vineberg LLP 

44th Floor, 1 First Canadian Place 
Toronto, Ontario 

 
Tuesday, December 9, 2008 

 
Present: 
 

Nicholas Leblovic (Chairman) Davies Ward Phillips & Vineberg LLP 
Glenn Leslie Blake Cassels & Graydon LLP 
Barry Bresner Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Gord Goodman Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
Donald Milner Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Chris Woodbury Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP 
Gale Rubenstein Goodmans LLP 
William Scott McCarthy Tetrault LLP 
Daniel MacDonald McMillan LLP 
Julia Holland Torys LLP 
Les O’Connor WeirFoulds LLP 
  
Patrick Mahoney Dion, Durrell + Associates 
Norma Ibbetson Dion, Durrell + Associates 
Joe Tontini Dion, Durrell + Associates 

 
 

1. Constitution of Meeting 
 

 The Chairman brought the meeting to order.   
 
 

2. Appointment of Secretary 
 
 Norma Ibbetson acted as Secretary. 
 
 
3. Approval of Minutes of the September 16 and October 31, 2008  Meeting of the Advisory Board 
 

It was moved by Chris Woodbury and seconded by Barry Bresner, subject to an edit on page 2 
that the minutes of the September 16, 2008 meeting of the Advisory Board be approved.   The 
motion was carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Gale Rubenstein and seconded by Barry Bresner that the minutes of October 
31, 2008 meeting of the Advisory Board be approved.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
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4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes 
 

Items arising out of the minutes will be dealt with under the other agenda items. 
 
 
5. Comments of the Chair

 
Updates will be addressedunder the other agenda items. 
 
Restructuring Plans 
 
Work is on-going with the Ad-hoc Committee. 
 
 

6. General Liability Policy Review 
 

Joe Tontini provided the Board with an overview of DD+A’s review of the CLLAS firms’ 
Commercial Insurance Policies highlighting the various policies and terms and conditions.  The 
purpose of the review was two fold:  1) establish some “best practice” parameters, e.g. coverage, 
price, and 2) discuss if alternative arrangements are feasible. 
 
 
DD+A will be asked to continue work on policy review including providing a summary of 
coverage/limits by price point, i.e. $134/lawyer vs. $578/lawyer and possible reasons for the variation 
in premium.  To complete the review Mr. Tontini may require additional information such as: 
 - total insurable values 
 - square footage 
 - payroll/revenue 
 
It is possible that a request will be made for claims information if it the pricing differential is not 
easily explainable.  A final report will be provided to the Board at their next meeting. 
 
There will also be a review of the Patent and Trademark Agents Insurance commercial policy versus 
CLLAS policy to advise on potential overlaps in coverage. 
 
 

7. Report of the General Manager’s Office 
 

Financial Statements Quarter Ending September 30, 2008 
 
Patrick Mahoney reported to the Board.   
 
FSCO has been closely monitoring insurers given the economic situation  and have been requesting 
“flash financial results”.  They asked for September 30th results within three weeks of the quarter end, 
and they also asked for results as at October 31st, which required additional activity because CLLAS’ 
financials are done quarterly, not monthly. 
 
To date, CLLAS’ conservative investment guidelines have protected it from the big declines in the 
equity market.  Bonds have remained relatively strong, and the main issue to monitor is the credit-
worthiness of individual bonds. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

CLLAS continues to build surplus, with Subscriber’s Equity as at September 30th of just over 
$19,000,000. 
 
The ACE dispute remains on-going.  Production of documents from the insured firm, as ordered by 
the panel, is underway and it appears likely that new dates for the arbitration will ultimately be set for 
mid-2009. 
 
Budget Variance 
 
There was nothing remarkable to report. 
 
Investment counsel fees are a percentage of money being managed by our Investment Managers.  
Claims payments have been low, so the investment manager is holding more money.  This is the 
reason for the increase in investment management fees. 
 
There has been a significant amount of activity on the claims management line in 2008 (i.e. the active  
management of the high potential claims) and that line will exceed budget.  Overall, fees on the 
professional services lines will finish at or close to budget.   
 
Appointment of Actuary 
 
It was moved by Donald Milner and seconded by Gordon Goodman that Julie-Linda Laforce of 
Dion Durrell + Associates Inc. be appointed as Actuary for the balance of 2008.  The motion was 
carried unanimously. 
 
Website Update 
 
The construction of the site is well underway with a target date of the February Board meeting to 
demonstrate the first phase of the system.. 
 
Peer Review Report 
 
Mr. Mahoney reviewed his December 1, 2008 memo to the Board in response to the Towers Perrin 
Report.  The memo serves as a “To Do List” with timelines. 
 
Specific to items 8 and 13 on the list CLLAS will not be gathering additional information to move to 
a risk rating system (exposure and experience rating) at this time. 
 
Ontario Insurance Act Amendments 
 
The background memo on changes to the Insurance Act was reviewed.  It is unlikely that it will have 
significant practical application to CLLAS but it is something the General Manager is watching.  It 
will be necessary to make minor amendments to the Subscribers Agreement, at some point prior to the 
effective date of the changes (in 2012).  

 
8.  Report of the Claims Committee 
  
 Barry Bresner reported that there were no new developments. 
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9. Report of the Risk Management Committee
 

Bill Scott reported on the Risk Management Audits.  Seven firms will have completed by John 
Walker by the end of 2008.  Four more firms are scheduled for 2009 and the remaining two firms 
(both of which were audited by Anthony Davis in the initial round) will be audited in 2010. 
 
Mr. John Walker will be able to provide a comprehensive overview at the end of the process.  There 
could be a mid-year report from Mr. Walker, possibly delivered at the September 2009 Board 
Meeting. 
 
Mr. Scott will be following up on the investment trading guidelines. 
 

10. Report of the Audit Committee 
 
Donald. Milner reported that a pre-audit meeting was held in November at the General Manager’s 
office with the Auditors.  Timelines were reviewed. 

 
11. Report of the Policy Committee 
 

Gordon Goodman reported that the Committee will be meeting to discuss various policy issues that 
have arisen out of the management of difficult claims to determine if any changes are required to the 
policy language. 
 

12. Report of the Restructuring Committee 
 
There was nothing to report at this time. 

 
13. September 30, 2008 Investment Manager’s Report – Confirmation of Investment Guidelines 

 
Patrick Mahoney reported.  CLLAS’ guidelines are very conservative and are assisting in weathering 
the current market crisis.  CLLAS will be asking the investment managers to comment on security of 
individual bonds and how security selections are made. 

 
14. Other Business 
 

There was no further business. 
 

15. Next Meeting 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board will be on February 24, 2009. 
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was terminated. 
 
 
 
 

   
Chairman  Secretary 
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

 Revision of 2008/2009 expected loss costs to reflect recent lawyers professional 
liability loss experience

 Change in per lawyer expected loss costs for layers:

February 20, 2009

Highlights of Valuation

$975,000 xs $25,000 /1: $126   => $134
$4,000,000 xs $1,000,000: $1,792   => $1,597
$7,500,000 xs $5,000,000 /2: $1,262   => $1,066
$12,500,000 xs $12,500,000 /2 : $945   => $768
$10,000,000 xs $25,000,000 /2 : $379   => $381
$30,000,000 xs $50,000,000: $28   => $8
$20,000,000 xs $140,000,000: $13   => $3
$10,000,000 xs $160,000,000: n/a   => $2
$20,000,000 xs $160,000,000: $9   => $2
$30,000,000 xs $160,000,000: n/a   => $2

/1  This layer was $750,000 xs $250,000 for 2007/2008 and prior policy periods

/2  Blended to reflect Quebec’s $10,000,000 deductible versus $5,000,000 for lawyers in other provinces
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Highlights of Valuation

 Revision of expected loss costs for 2008/2009 reflects recent favourable emerging experience
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Highlights of Valuation
 Revision of Loss Development Factors for IBNR projection
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Association

Highlights of Valuation

 The impact of the change in assumptions represents an increase of $769,000 in the net 
undiscounted liabilities

 Discount Rate

 The discount rate is used for the discounting of future claims payments and related PfAD 
margin

 A discount rate of 3.0% was selected based on the market yield of the company’s bond 
portfolio as at December 31, 2007 since the company has classified its bond portfolio as 
available-for-sale per CICA 3855

 The interest rate used in the last valuation was 4.0%
 The PfAD margin on interest rate was maintained at 0.75%
 The impact of these changes is an increase of $1,516,000 in the net December 31, 2008 

claims liabilities (discounted + PfAD)

February 20, 2009
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Reported Incurred Loss Activity - Counts
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Gross Reported Incurred Loss Activity Losses Incurred (in $000’s)
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Net Reported Incurred Loss Activity Losses Incurred (in $000’s)

897

2,470

0

5,638

1,883 1,871

0 0

3,300 3,300

500

3,300

5,500 5,500

1,850

3

712

1,550
1,800

0 0
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

C
LL

A
S 

R
ep

or
te

d 
In

cu
rr

ed
 L

os
se

s 
(0

00
's

)

90
/91

91
/92

92
/93

93
/94

94
/95

95
/96

96
/97

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

Policy Year

Dec. 31, 2007 - $37,562,635
Dec. 31, 2008 - $38,521,917

February 20, 2009



9

Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Arrangements between CLLAS and Colchester for (2008/2009) *

* Excludes additional exposure between the $25,000 and $250,000 where CLLAS may drop down
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Breakdown of Outstanding Claims Liabilities
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Valuation of Claims Liabilities, Discounting

 All liabilities are subject to discounting
 Reserves and IBNR are estimates of losses yet to be paid.  Discounting these 

reserves for the time value of money is deemed appropriate
 Once discounted, reserves are subject to the addition of a Provision for Adverse 

Deviation (“PfAD”), a reserve added to the discounted liabilities for the following 
situations:
 Development on claims: Claims experience worse than expected
 Investment income: Investment yield below expectation
 Reinsurance: Reinsurers default on their obligations

 Reserves subject to discounting and PfAD are considered to be the best estimate of 
future losses, this basis is required by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries

February 20, 2009
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Valuation of Claims Liabilities, Margins for Adverse Deviation
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Impact of Provision for Adverse Deviation on Net Outstanding Liabilities
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Gain (Loss) Analysis of Net Outstanding Liabilities at December 31, 2008

35,034
2,229 

(-6,827)

39,632 (-1,804)

9,115 

32,321

Amount in 000's

Actual 12/2008 Outstanding
Liabilities 

Change in Assumptions

Favourable Claim Experience

Expected 12/2008 Outstanding
Liabilities *

Paid in 2008

2008 Expected Costs

12/2007 Outstanding Liabilities

* Reflects the impact of discounting and provision for adverse deviation

Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

February 20, 2009
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PART 1 - INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Company:  Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society (CLLAS) 
 
Date of Valuation: December 31, 2008 
 
Purpose:  Actuarial opinion and valuation report as required by the Ontario Insurance Act. 
 
Author:   Ms. Julie-Linda Laforce, F.C.I.A , F.C.A.S. 
   Dion, Durrell + Associates Inc. 
   630 Rene-Levesque Blvd. West, suite 2940  
   Montréal, QC, H3B 1S6 
   (514) 673-4708 
 
Authority:  Actuary to the Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society. 
 
Distribution:  This report is strictly for the use of CLLAS, its external auditors, its advisors and the 

regulatory authorities in the context of their work in connection with the financial 
statements and Annual Return.  Any other use or disclosure should be discussed 
first with Dion, Durrell + Associates Inc.  If our report is distributed further, the 
report must be distributed in its entirety.  All recipients of this report should be 
aware that the person signing it is available to answer questions about it. 

 
   This report was prepared and filed with the regulatory authorities in accordance with 

the relevant legislation and accepted actuarial practice based on the appropriate 
Standards of Practice of the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. 
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SCOPE 
 
Actuarial valuation of all policy liabilities, including: 
 
1. claims liabilities, 
2. liabilities in connection with unearned premium, and 
3. other policy liabilities. 
 
No actuarial liabilities have been excluded from this report. 
 
No other report will be issued to the subscribers of CLLAS. 
 
OPERATIONS 
 
General 
 
CLLAS was formed in 1986 and licensed as an insurer in 1987 with the first policies issued with an 
effective date of July 1, 1987.  CLLAS provides professional liability insurance to subscribing law firms 
in excess of the compulsory coverage provided by the various law societies.  Since inception, coverage 
provided by CLLAS has been on a claims made basis.  For the first policy term (i.e., July 1, 1987 to June 
30, 1988), coverage was in excess of $600,000.  Coverage in subsequent policy terms is in excess of 
$1,000,000. 
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A summary of the coverage provided by CLLAS is set out below: 
 

 
CLLAS HISTORICAL COVERAGE SUMMARY 
 

Coverage Period  Coverage Provided (in million $) 
July 1, 1987 to June 30, 1988  $24.4 excess of $0.6 
July 1, 1988 to June 30, 1989 to  
July 1, 1989 to June 30, 1990 

 $24.0 excess of $1.0 

July 1, 1990 to June 30, 1991  $24.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$25.0 excess of $50.0 

July 1, 1991 to June 30, 1992 to 
July 1, 1996 to June 30, 1997 

 $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$25.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0 

July 1, 1997 to June 30, 1998  $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$25.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0 
$15.0 excess of $120.0 (optional layer) 

July 1, 1998 to June 30, 1999  $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  $20.0 excess of 
$130.0 (optional layer) 

July 1, 1999 to June 30, 2000 **  $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  $20.0 excess of 
$130.0 (optional layer) 

July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001 to July 1, 
2002 to June 30, 2003 ** 

 $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  
$20.0 excess of $140.0 (optional layer) 

July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004 to July 1, 
2005 to June 30, 2006 *** 

 $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  
$20.0 excess of $140.0 (optional layer) 

July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007 to July 1, 
2007 to June 30, 2008 *** 

 $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  
$20.0 excess of $140.0 (optional layer 1) 
$20.0 excess of $160.0 (optional layer 2) 

July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 ***  $34.0 excess of $1.0* plus 
$30.0 excess of a minimum of $50.0  
$20.0 excess of $140.0 (optional layer 1) 
$10.0/20.0/30.0 excess of $160.0 (optional layer 2) 

 
*      The excess policies are endorsed to drop down to excess of $250,000 ($25,000 starting in 2008/2009) in certain instances 
**     For Québec, all CLLAS coverage is provided in excess of a $5 million retention up to and including policy year 2002/2003 
***  For Québec, for policy years 2003/2004 and after, CLLAS coverage is provided $25 million in excess of a $10 million retention 
   
The policy limits presented above are also firm aggregate limits. As of July 1, 2002 the firm aggregate limit 
on the first $5 million of coverage, inclusive of underlying, was set at $25 million. This was reduced as of 
July 1, 2007 to $12 million and further reduced to $5 million as of July 1, 2008. 
 
The umbrella layer of coverage ($30 million excess of a minimum of $50 million) is subject to an annual 
aggregate of $60 million for all law firms combined.  Coverage between the basic coverages described above 
($34 million excess of $1 million) and the minimum attachment point of $50 million of the umbrella layer is 
not provided by CLLAS, but left to individual subscribers to arrange.  As of July 1, 2008, CLLAS began 
offering an option of $10 million excess of $160 million, $20 million excess of $160 million or $30 million 
excess of $160 million in optional layer 2. 
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Reinsurance 
 
The coverage provided by CLLAS is divided into layers with varying amounts of proportional 
reinsurance purchased in each layer.  The size and the number of layers have varied over time.  Effective 
July 1, 2002, CLLAS retains 100% of its losses in the layer $4 million excess of $1 million.  In previous 
policy years the retained portion has been 50% in said layer.  In addition, beginning July 1, 1989 
reinsurance on the aggregate retention of CLLAS, after reflection of the proportional reinsurance, has 
been purchased from Colchester Reinsurance Limited (“Colchester”).  Colchester is an unlicensed 
reinsurer which is domiciled in Barbados.  The historical reinsurance arrangements are summarized in 
Schedule 1. 
 
Membership/Management Changes 
 
The number of insured lawyers has increased from approximately 1,450 to 4,918 (including 54 patent and 
trademark agents) from 1987 to 2008.  There has been a nominal change in the number of lawyers insured 
by CLLAS since last year.  Included in the 4,918 lawyers are 132 lawyers practicing in the US or the UK 
which are covered by the optional layers, but are not covered by the shared umbrella layer.  CLLAS has 
been managed by The Wyatt Company from its inception in 1987 up until late 1995 and by Dion Durrell 
+ Associates Inc. thereafter. 
 
To the best of my knowledge, there have not been any major changes in management policies and 
philosophy in recent years.  There have been no management changes in 2008. 
 
Claims Administration/Reserving 
 
Based on discussions with CLLAS management, claims administration and reserving practices are 
generally consistent with prior years.  CLLAS establishes its own claims reserves with  
consideration for the reserves set by the Law Society of Upper Canada (LSUC) and other law societies 
which offer the underlying compulsory program, as well as the circumstances of individual claims.  
CLLAS reserves are monitored on an ongoing basis and are reviewed and modified on a quarterly basis 
by CLLAS Claims Committee as deemed appropriate. 
 
STANDARD OF MATERIALITY 
 
I have selected a standard of materiality deemed to be appropriate under the circumstances. 
 
In selecting this materiality level, I have given due consideration to: 
 
 • the surplus position of CLLAS, 
 • the value of the unpaid liabilities,  
 • the potential impact of errors on future premium levels and retroassessments,  
 • who the potential users of CLLAS' financial statements are, and 
 • the overall level of materiality selected by the auditor. 
 
The potential users of the CLLAS' financial statements include: 
 
 1. regulators, 
 2. management, 
 3. auditors, and 
 4. subscribers. 
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The level of materiality selected encompasses approximation errors as well as errors due to inaccurate 
information. 
 
The foregoing considerations have resulted in the selection of a level of materiality of $250,000, which 
corresponds to approximately 0.2% of CLLAS’ assets and 0.7% of its net claims liabilities as of December 
31, 2008. 
 
CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
 
In carrying out this valuation, I have relied on the CLLAS’ financial records and I have verified the 
consistency of the valuation data with the CLLAS financial records.  I have asked CLLAS’ external auditor, 
Deloitte & Touche:  
 

a) to employ appropriate tests and sampling of CLLAS’s individual records to ensure 
accurate and proper recording of premium, claim and asset information, 

b) to employ appropriate tests and sampling to ascertain that proper management controls 
are in place to ensure the completeness of premium, claim and asset data, and 

c) to employ appropriate tests to ensure that our premium and claim data sets correspond in 
aggregate to internal CLLAS reports. 

 
I have received a satisfactory report from the auditors for the year ending December 31, 2008. 
 
I am satisfied that the data utilized are reliable and sufficient for the valuation of these liabilities. 
 
Policy liabilities are estimates.  The ultimate liabilities will depend upon future contingent, and by definition, 
uncertain events.  Examples of such events include unanticipated changes in inflation, changes to the legal 
system and judgements establishing precedents. 
 
It must be recognized that the future emergence of loss and loss adjustment expenses may deviate from our 
estimates by a significant margin.  In estimating these liabilities, I have used procedures and assumptions 
which, in my opinion, are reasonable and appropriate and I believe the resulting estimates are reasonable 
given the information available. 
 
SPECIFIC DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Annual Required Reporting to the Board or Audit Committee 
 
I will meet with the audit committee on February 20, 2009 to present the results of this report. 
 
Continuing Professional Development Requirements 
 
I am in compliance with the Continuing Professional Development requirements of the Canadian Institute of 
Actuaries. 
 
Dynamic Capital Adequacy Testing (DCAT) 
 
There is no requirement to complete a DCAT analysis for CLLAS. 
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New Appointment 
 
I was appointed by the Board of Directors on December 9, 2008 replacing Liam McFarlane who resigned on 
December 9, 2008.  The regulator was notified of the new appointment on December 17, 2008.   
 
I have communicated with Liam McFarlane who was available to answer any questions pertaining to 
previous analyses.   
 
I am in compliance with the Continuing Professional Development requirements of the Canadian Institute of 
Actuaries.  I have had numerous years of experience providing advice to professional liability reciprocals. 
 
Disclosure of Compensation 
 
I attest that all my direct and indirect compensation is derived using the following methodology: 
 
Dion Durrell operates on a fee for service basis and hence the compensation that we receive from CLLAS is a 
function of the time and personnel involved in the engagement. 
 
I confirm that I have performed my duties without regard to my personal considerations or to any influence, 
interest or relationship in respect to the affairs of my client or employer that might impair my professional 
judgement or objectivity. 
 
I confirm that my ability to act fairly is unimpaired, that there has been full disclosure of the methodology 
used to derive my compensation to all known direct users of my services. 
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PART 2 - EXPRESSION OF OPINION 

I have valued the policy liabilities of the Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society for its balance sheet 
as at December 31, 2008 and their change in the statement of income for the year then ended in accordance 
with accepted actuarial practice, including selection of appropriate assumptions and methods.  I am satisfied 
that the data utilized are reliable and sufficient for the valuation of these liabilities.  I verified the consistency 
of the valuation data with the company financial records. 
 

The results of my valuation together with items from the Annual Return are as follows: 
 

 
Claim Liabilities 

Carried in 
Annual Return 

Actuary’s 
Estimate 

(1) Direct unpaid claims and adjustment expenses  $ 80,511,000  $ 80,511,000 
(2) Assumed unpaid claims and adjustment expenses   0   0 
(3) Gross unpaid claims and adjustment expenses  $ 80,511,000  $ 80,511,000 
(4) Ceded unpaid claims and adjustment expenses    45,477,000   45,477,000 
(5) Other amounts to recover   0   0 
(6) Other net liabilities   0   0 
(7) Net unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (3)-(4)-(5)+(6)  $ 35,034,000  $ 35,034,000 

 

 
Premium Liabilities 

Carried in  
Annual Return 

(Col. 1) 

Actuary’s  
Estimate 
(Col. 2) 

(1) Gross policy liabilities in connection with unearned 
premiums     $ 11,051,000 

(2) Net policy liabilities in connection with unearned premiums      4,406,000 

(3) Gross unearned premiums  $ 12,059,000    

(4) Net unearned premiums   4,860,000    

(5) Premium deficiency   0   0 

(6) Other net liabilities   2,630,000   2,630,000 

(7) Deferred policy acquisition expenses   365,000    

(8) Maximum policy acquisition expenses deferrable  
[(4)+(5)+(9)]Col. 1 – (2)Col.2 

    $ 454,000 

(9) Unearned Commissions  $ 0    

 
In my opinion the amount of policy liabilities makes appropriate provision for all policyholders’ obligations 
and the annual return fairly presents the results of the valuation. 
 
 
  FCIA   
 Signature of Actuary  Date opinion was rendered 
 
 Julie-Linda Laforce FCIA 
 Printed name of Actuary 
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PART 3 - COMPARISON OF ACTUAL EXPERIENCE WITH EXPECTED 
EXPERIENCE 

The expected experience represents the net ultimate loss projections as of December 31, 2003, December 
31, 2004, December 31, 2005, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007, and the actual experience 
represents the net ultimate loss projections as of December 31, 2008.  Exhibit XV shows both actual and 
expected experience net of proportional reinsurance and of Stop-Loss reinsurance (i.e. Colchester).  
 
Significant changes in net ultimate losses were observed in 2003/2004, 2004/2005, 2006/2007 and 
2007/2008.  In 2003/2004, 2004/2005, 2006/2007 and 2007/2008 there were decreases of $619,000, 
$1,221,000, $2,446,000 and $649,000 respectively, as a result of favourable development. 
 
There have been moderate changes in claims experience for other policy periods and an overall net claims 
experience gain of $5,361,000 (i.e. 8.2% of prior year end estimate) has been realized in 2008 for all policy 
periods combined. 
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PART 4 - COMMENTARY - CLAIMS LIABILITIES, LIABILITIES IN 
CONNECTION WITH UNEARNED PREMIUM AND OTHER POLICY 

LIABILITIES 

CLAIMS LIABILITIES 
 
Considerations 
 
The following were considered in estimating the claims liabilities: 
 
Homogeneity/Credibility 
 
The same coverage is offered to all subscribers.  We consider the risk exposures of the CLLAS subscribers to 
be homogeneous for estimating claims liabilities. 
 
Given the excess nature of the coverage provided by CLLAS, claims experience is very limited.  For that 
reason, we have estimated IBNR reserves based upon anticipated future development of expected losses. 
 
Frequency/Severity 
 
Given the excess nature of the coverage provided by CLLAS, claims experience has been very volatile from 
year to year. 
 
Claims Runoff 
 
As at December 31, 2008, there are a total of 36 claims with an incurred value of $143,094,000 that exceed 
the $1,000,000 retention, consisting of gross case reserves of $13,449,000 and gross payments of 
$129,645,000. At the end of 2007, there were 34 claims with an incurred value of $140,729,000 within the 
CLLAS coverage layers, consisting of gross case reserves of $15,063,000 and gross payments of 
$125,666,000.  The development during 2008 was favourable. 
 
Retention/Reinsurance 
 
The 2008/2009 reinsurance arrangements were similar to those in place for 2007/2008.  The details of the 
current (2008/2009 policy period) and historical reinsurance arrangements are provided in Schedule 1 of this 
report. 
 
External Influences 
 
I am not aware of any legal or regulatory changes or any precedents set in case law that would impact our 
estimates. 



 

CLLAS-Report on the Valuation of Policy Liabilities 10

Marketing Strategy 
 
There have been no changes in marketing strategy since CLLAS’ inception. The number of insured lawyers 
is approximately the same as it was in the last valuation.  Please note that in 2007, one firm dissolved and 
continuous coverage has been provided to the lawyers of this firm that joined other CLLAS firms in 
exchange for a lateral coverage premium.  No adjustment has been made in our valuation to reflect the 
potential reduction in exposure of CLLAS 
 
Mix of Business 
 
There has not been any material change in the mix of business since CLLAS' inception. 
 
Claims Recording/Settlement 
 
Claims recording and claims settlement practices during 2008 were consistent with historical practices.  The 
year-end cut off date was December 31, 2008. 
 
Reopened Claim Potential 
 
Our analysis indicates that in the past no relevant reopening claim activity has taken place.  I am not aware of 
any precedent setting judicial opinions, liberalizing legislation or company procedures which might affect the 
claims reopening potential. 
 
Aggregate Limits 
 
The aggregate limits of CLLAS' reinsurance with Colchester have changed at June 30, 1998 and 
subsequently at June 30, 2002, June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2006 as described in detail in Part 4 – 
Commentary – Reinsurance. 
 
Collateral Sources 
 
Case reserves used in this valuation are assumed to be net of salvage and subrogation.  We are not aware of 
any other collateral sources which might reduce the claims liabilities.   
 
Pools and Associations 
 
CLLAS does not participate in any voluntary or involuntary underwriting pools or associations.  Therefore, 
CLLAS is not subject to any liabilities from participation in any pools or associations. 
 
Coverage Changes 
 
For Québec, for policy years 2003/2004 and after, CLLAS coverage is provided in excess of a $10 million 
retention compared to a $5 million retention for policy years 1999/2000 to 2002/2003.  Starting in 2008/2009, 
coverage can drop down to $25,000 in certain instances compared to $250,000 in prior policy periods.  
Optional layer 2 can also be purchased for $10M, $20M or $30M in excess of $160M.  There have been no 
other coverage changes since my last valuation of CLLAS. 
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Case Reserving Practices 
 
CLLAS utilizes case reserves set by the law societies and reviews large claims.  However it may, if deemed 
appropriate, set reserves higher than the law societies for claims which have the potential of piercing into 
CLLAS' coverage layers.  The case reserving practices have been consistent over time. 
 
Regulatory Changes 
 
I am not aware of any regulatory changes that would affect my valuation of CLLAS. 
 
Methodology and Assumptions - Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses 
 
In estimating the ultimate loss and allocated loss adjustment expense liabilities faced by CLLAS, I have 
utilized methodologies consistent with last year.  The data underlying our projections and estimates can be 
found in Part 5 of this report.   
 
The Incurred But Not Reported ("IBNR") liabilities have been established using a Bornhuetter-Ferguson 
approach, based upon expected losses for each coverage period, and an assumed claim emergence pattern.  
The expected loss volumes have been estimated as the product of the exposure count (earned lawyer years) 
and pure premiums (expected loss costs per lawyer). 
 
Rating studies have been performed yearly since 1995 and expected loss costs assumptions have been revised 
from time to time.  The last such rating study took place in early 2008 which led to revised expected loss 
costs per lawyer for the period covering from July 1, 2008 through July 31, 2009.  These were used in my 
December 31, 2008 valuation.  I have summarized below the revised and prior loss costs per lawyer 
assumptions for each layer of proportional reinsurance. 
 

Reinsurance Layer Expected Loss Costs Per Lawyer 
(in million $) Prior Revised 

   $0.75 xs $0.25 
   $4.0   xs $1.0 
   $7.5   xs $5.0 
   $12.5 xs $12.5 
   $10.0 xs $25.0 
   $30.0 xs minimum $50.0 
   $20.0 xs $140.0 
   $10.0 xs $160.0 
   $20.0 xs $160.0 
   $30.0 xs $160.0 

 $        126 
  1,792 
  1,262 
  945 
  379 
  28 
  13 
  n/a 
  9 
  n/a 

 $        164 
  1,597 
  1,066 
  768 
  381 
  8 
  3 
  2 
  2 
  2 
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The assumed claim emergence pattern has been derived using the observed development for lawyers 
professional liability excess loss experience from a number of the law societies as a guide as shown in 
Exhibit III.  The loss development patterns were revised based upon the indications from Exhibit III.    
The selected developments and resulting IBNR factors are shown below. 
 

Duration 
(in months) 

 
Loss Development Factor 

 
IBNR Factor 

6  12.755   0.922  
18  6.145   0.837  
30  2.495   0.599  
42  1.825   0.452  
54  1.350   0.259  
66  1.175   0.149  
78  1.125   0.111  
90  1.100   0.091  
102  1.075   0.070  
114  1.040   0.038  
126  1.025   0.024  

  138+  1.013   0.012  
 
The assumed claim payout pattern has been derived using the observed payout for lawyers professional 
liability excess loss experience from a number of the law societies as a guide.  The selected payout pattern is 
shown below. 
 

Duration 
(in months) 

 
Payout % 

0 0% 
12 4% 
24 8% 
36 18% 
48 20% 
60 10% 
72 10% 
84 5% 
96 3% 
108 3% 
120 3% 
132 3% 
144 3% 
156 3% 
168 3% 
180 2% 
192 2% 
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I have established the liabilities for unallocated loss adjusting expenses at 2.0 % of the gross indemnity and 
legal expense liabilities and have assumed that all ULAE costs would be retained by CLLAS.  I selected a 
factor of 2.0% based on an analysis of unallocated loss adjustment expenses provision and gross outstanding 
liabilities.  It should be noted that ULAE represents solely CLLAS internal claims management expenses. 
 
The derivation of the ULAE % as shown in Exhibit IV is based upon the following key assumptions: 
 
• Estimated internal claims management expenses equal to $357,000 in 2009. 
• Indexing of such expenses at 3% a year in future years. 
• The portion of such annual expenses related to the outstanding claims liabilities as of December 31, 2008 

will decrease at an annual rate of 1/7 per year from 2009 to 2015. 
 
The ULAE provision resulting from the above assumptions represents, as indicated in Exhibit IV, 1.9% of the 
gross case reserves and IBNR provision as of December 31, 2008.  A 2.0% assumption was selected to 
determine the ULAE provision as of December 31, 2008.  As shown in Exhibit VIII, such provision amounts 
to $1,598,000 (i.e. $269,000 based on gross case reserves plus $1,329,000 based on gross IBNR). 
 
During 1990 one of the unregistered reinsurers (Walbrook) stopped accepting business and was replaced on 
April 1, 1990 by registered companies.  This reinsurer, as of the current time, is in liquidation and the future 
collectibility of this reinsurance is in question.  In total, $0 of total reserves is ceded to Walbrook. 
 
Exhibits V, VI, VII and VIII show the ground-up incurred loss amounts as well as the impact of proportional 
reinsurance, aggregate reinsurance (i.e. Colchester), uncollectible reinsurance amounts and unallocated loss 
adjustment expenses. 
 
Exhibit VIII shows the net CLLAS losses after consideration of all of the above elements. 
 
Exhibit VIII shows CLLAS net outstanding liabilities.  Such net outstanding liabilities amount to 
$33,387,000 including the ULAE component (i.e. case reserves of $7,837,000 and an IBNR provision of 
$25,550,000). 
 
Impact of Changes in Methodology and Assumptions on Reserve Estimates 
The changes in methodology and assumptions implemented in my December 31, 2008 valuation resulted in a 
total increase in net undiscounted liabilities of $769,000.  This was generated by the change in expected loss 
costs and incurred loss development factors. 
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Expected Ultimate Loss Ratios 
 
The ultimate loss ratio history, based on my estimates of ultimate losses and loss adjustment expenses in 
recent years, is as follows: 
 

Policy (1) Ultimate Loss & LAE Ratio 
Period Gross Basis Net Basis 

1987/1988  0%  0% 
1988/1989  0%  0% 
1989/1990  0%  0% 
1990/1991  85%  153% 
1991/1992  172%  428% 
1992/1993  7%  0% 
1993/1994  679%  1510% 
1994/1995  181%  142% 
1995/1996     64%     97% 
1996/1997  0%  0% 
1997/1998  1%  1% 
1998/1999  190%  76% 
1999/2000  74%  65% 
2000/2001  15%  12% 
2001/2002  139%  57% 

    2002/2003 (2)  49%  122% 
    2003/2004 (3)  145%  85% 

2004/2005  32%  58% 
2005/2006  48%  64% 
2006/2007  53%  72% 
2007/2008  64%  81% 
2008/2009  67%  86% 

Total  79%  75% 
 

(1) July 1 to June 30, except for 2008/2009 which is July 1 to December 31, 2008. 
(2) Excluding reinsurance premium liability of $(91,754) 
(3) Excluding reinsurance premium liability of $2,721,575 

 
The details of the previous table’s calculations are summarized in Exhibit IX, page 1. 
 
Please note that the above calculations do not reflect the $7,000,000 retro-assessment called at December 31, 
1996 and the $1,600,000 retro-assessment called at June 30, 1998.  If such retro-assessments are included in 
the above calculation a total loss ratio of 77% and 68% would result on a gross and net basis respectively. 
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PROVISION FOR ADVERSE DEVIATION - CLAIMS LIABILITIES 
 
Introduction 
 
The Consolidated Standards of Practice – Specific Standards for Insurance, Section 2250 of the Canadian 
Institute of Actuaries (CIA) provides explicit guidance for the setting of the provision for adverse deviation 
associated with claims liabilities.  
 
There are three major valuation variables in any property and casualty insurance valuation.  Associated with 
each of these variables the CIA has established a recommended range of low and high margins which varies 
with the uncertainty of the variable.   
 
The variables involved and the range of margin for each is shown below: 
 

Variable Margin 
1. Claims Development Low margin: 2.5% of discounted liabilities 

High margin: 15.0% of discounted liabilities 
2. Reinsurance Recovery Low margin: 0.0% of discounted liabilities 

High margin: 15.0 % of discounted liabilities 
3. Interest Rate Low margin: 50 basis points (0.5%) 

High margin: 200 basis points (2.0%) 
 
Evaluation of these margins can be found in Exhibit X, page 1. 
 
Valuation Variables 
 
Claim Development Variable 
The liabilities are long tailed, which require a number of years of development before a precise picture of the 
ultimate liabilities can be obtained.  In addition since the coverage is excess of loss it is also subject to a high 
degree of variability.  As a result of these considerations I have selected a margin for claim development of 
10.0%, which is at the medium to high end of the recommended range. 
 
The total margin for net claim development is calculated at $2,904,000 and is shown in Exhibit X, page 7. 
 
Reinsurance Recovery Variable 
Except for Walbrook, all CLLAS proportional reinsurers are believed to be in sound financial condition.  All 
have a Best Rating of A- or better except for Unionamerica which has not been rated by rating agencies since 
January 2001, the time at which the company was placed into run-off.  Unionamerica assumes 4.02% of layer 
$7.5 million xs $5.0 million and 1.36% of layer $12.5 million xs $12.5 million in policy periods 1998/1999 to 
2000/2001.  Given that a material amount of ceded liabilities are also with unlicensed reinsurers, I have 
selected a margin of 5.0% ($2,099,000) for the reinsurance recovery variable.  This selection remains 
unchanged from 2007.  The calculation of this margin is also shown in Exhibit X. 
 
Interest Rate Variable 
The investment portfolio is mainly comprised of government bonds of durations of up to 10 years and 
treasury bills which are all of high quality.  A discount rate of 3.0% was selected based on the yield of the 
company’s bond portfolio as at December 31, 2008.  This is a decrease of 1.0% from the discount rate used in 
the previous valuation.  The yield reflects the market value of bonds since the company has classified its bond 
portfolio as available-for-sale. 
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However, since the bulk of liabilities arise from excess of loss coverage, the length and predictability of the 
claim payment patterns means that it is difficult to perfectly match investments with claims payments.  I have 
therefore selected a margin of 75 basis points (0.75%) on the interest rate variable which has resulted in the 
selection of a margin of $989,000.  The calculation of this margin is also shown in Exhibit X. 
 
Summary 
 
The total margin on the variables comprising the provision for adverse deviation is $5,992,000.  Therefore, 
the final actuarial liabilities can be summarized as follows: 
 
(1) Discounted Outstanding Claims Liabilities at December 31, 2008   $29,042,000 
(2) Provision for Adverse Deviation 5,992,000 
(3) Discounted Outstanding Claims Liabilities plus Provision for Adverse Deviation* $35,034,000 
 
* Outstanding claims liabilities are equal to the discounted outstanding liabilities plus the provision for adverse deviation as per the 
Canadian Institute of Actuaries standard of practice. 
 
Exhibit XIII also shows a summary of the net undiscounted and discounted (including the provision for 
adverse deviation) claims liabilities.  
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SUMMARY OF CLAIMS LIABILITIES 
 
Gross, Ceded and Net Basis 
 
The unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses on a gross, ceded and net basis are summarized as 
follows: 
 

 Case Reserves IBNR /1 Total Unpaid 
Gross Losses   $ 13,449,000  $ 67,062,000  $ 80,511,000 
Ceded Losses    (5,612,000)   (39,865,000)   (45,477,000) 
Net Losses  $ 7,837,000  $ 27,197,000  $ 35,034,000 

                
              /1 Including ULAE and the full impact of discounting and PFAD 

 
Subsequent Events 
 
I am not aware of any significant event after the December 31, 2008 valuation date which would materially 
affect the results of my valuation. 
 
Reconciliation with Annual Return 
 
Reconciliation of claims liabilities reported in the Annual Return to the actuary's estimate: 
 

  Source 
 1. Net unpaid claims reported by CLLAS  $ 35,034,000 Annual Return 
 2. Actuary's estimate of recoverable   45,477,000  
 3. (1) + (2)  $ 80,511,000  
 4. Actuary's estimate of gross unpaid claims   80,511,000  
 5. Redundancy (deficiency) (3) - (4)  $ 0  
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POLICY LIABILITIES IN CONNECTION WITH UNEARNED PREMIUM 
 
Considerations 
 
The liabilities in connection with unearned premium are based upon the review of the following 
considerations: 
 
Rate History 
Summarized below is the rate per lawyer charged by CLLAS since 1987: 
 

Policy Period Average Premium Rate Per Lawyer 
July 1, 1987 to June 30, 1988  $ 3,000 
July 1, 1988 to June 30, 1989   2,000 
July 1, 1989 to June 30, 1990   1,800 
July 1, 1990 to June 30, 1991   1,800 
July 1, 1991 to June 30, 1992   1,800 
July 1, 1992 to June 30, 1993   1,800 
July 1, 1993 to June 30, 1994   1,800 
July 1, 1994 to June 30, 1995   1,950 
July 1, 1995 to June 30, 1996   2,300 
July 1, 1996 to June 30, 1997   3,000   
July 1, 1997 to June 30, 1998   3,000 
July 1, 1998 to June 30, 1999   4,350   
July 1, 1999 to June 30, 2000   4,305   
July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001   4,180 
July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002   4,116  
July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003   3,881  
July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2004   4,663  
July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005   5,089  
July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2006   5,180  
July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007   6,812  
July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 

  5,540  
  4,945  

 
Also, as of December 31, 1996, CLLAS has called a retro-assessment of $7,000,000 payable by its 
subscribers in ten instalments of $700,000 over the following five years starting on July 1, 1997.  The 
premium rate for 1997/1998 through 2001/2002 includes a provision for this retro-assessment.  The 
1998/1999 through 2001/2002 premium rate also includes a provision for the $1,600,000 retro-assessment 
called on June 30, 1998 which is payable over a four year period starting on July 1, 1998.  Since 1998/1999 
the premium rate is inclusive of a surplus contribution which has varied from year to year. 
 
Frequency/Severity Trends 
Coverage provided by CLLAS is expected to give rise to a combination of low frequency/high severity 
claims.  Given the small volume of claims experience to date, frequency/severity trends are subject to high 
degree of volatility. 
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External Influences 
I am not aware of any legal or regulatory changes or precedents set in case law expected to have a material 
impact on the future cost of claims. 
 
Reinsurance Arrangements 
The types of reinsurance arrangements, their conditions and retention levels applicable to the unexpired 
portion of the policies in force are similar to those currently in force.   
 
Premium Collection 
I am not aware of any premium collectibility problems.  This was confirmed by CLLAS management. 
 
Seasonality of Losses 
I am not aware of any variations in the frequency or severity of claims caused by seasonality.  Therefore, the 
loss exposure arising from policies currently in force is not expected to be subject to seasonal variation. 
 
Coverage Changes 
I am not aware of any coverage change which could affect the claim costs arising from the unexpired portion 
of the business in force. 
 
Unearned Premiums 
 
Unearned premiums are computed using the daily pro rata method.  The gross and net unearned premiums as 
of December 31, 2008 are $12,059,000 and $4,860,000 respectively. 
 
Doubtful Reinsurance Accounts 
 
There is an on-going dispute with several reinsurers regarding the recoveries pertaining to claim number 
2004-194, however, management is confident that this dispute will be resolved in CLLAS’ favour.  I have 
reviewed and discussed all other reinsurance collectibles with management and am satisfied that with the 
exception of one unregistered reinsurer (Walbrook) all other reinsurance is collectible. 
 
Summary of Liabilities in Connection with Unearned Premium 
 
The liabilities in connection with unearned premiums are computed in Exhibit XI.  Summarized below are 
the variables used in the calculation of the liabilities. 
 
Ultimate Loss Ratio History 
I have estimated the expected loss ratio using on-level premiums and trended ultimate losses as shown in 
Exhibit IX page 2. 
 
Unallocated Loss Adjusting Expenses 
The unallocated loss adjusting expenses as a percentage of losses is selected in Exhibit IV.  A 2.0% ratio is 
used for liabilities in connection with unearned premium for a total of $271,000. 
 
Policyholder Service Costs 
I have selected 3.0% of premiums as the policyholder servicing costs for a total of $362,000.  This is based 
on 1/3 of the ratio of selected general expenses to gross earned premium subject to a maximum of 5.0% and a 
minimum of 3.0%. 
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Investment Return on Unearned Premiums 
Based upon the same reasons as applicable for claims liabilities, a 3.0% rate of return has been used to 
calculate expected investment return on unearned premiums.  The resulting income is $36,000. 
 
Change in Reinsurance Costs 
Because the policy and reinsurance contract dates are the same, there is no applicable change in reinsurance 
cost amount. 
 
After application of all these considerations the resulting liabilities were then discounted and the Provision for 
Adverse Deviation was added, per the CIA standard of practice, as illustrated later in this section.  The final 
gross liabilities in connection with unearned premium are $11,051,000 and the final net liabilities in 
connection with unearned premium are $4,406,000. 
 
Premium Deficiency 
 
The premium deficiency reserve as at December 31, 2008 is nil. 
 
Deferred Policy Acquisition Expense 
 
Using the net liabilities in connection with unearned premiums stated above, the maximum allowable 
deferred policy acquisition expense is found to be $454,000.  The company’s deferred expenses are 
$365,000. 
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PROVISION FOR ADVERSE DEVIATION - LIABILITIES IN CONNECTION WITH 
UNEARNED PREMIUM 
 
Introduction 
 
As previously stated in connection with claims liabilities the CIA standard of practice with respect to 
Provision for Adverse Deviations also applies to liabilities in connection with unearned premiums.   
 
The variables involved and the range of margins are the same as shown previously in the section on provision 
for adverse deviation in connection with claims liabilities. 
 
Valuation Variables 
 
Claim Development Variable 
We have selected a margin similar to that chosen in the section on provision for adverse deviation for claim 
liabilities.  The margin for net claim development has been selected at 10.0% ($331,000).  The calculation of 
this margin is shown in Exhibit XI, page 3. 
 
Reinsurance Recovery Variable 
We have selected a margin of 5.0% ($304,000) for the reinsurance recovery variable.  This selection is 
similar to that chosen in the section on provision for adverse deviation for claim liabilities.  The calculation of 
this variable is also shown in Exhibit XI, page 3. 
 
Interest Rate Variable 
For reasons similar to those outlined in the claims liabilities section, a margin of 75 basis points (0.75%) has 
been selected for the interest rate variable.  This has resulted in the selection of a margin of $137,000.  The 
calculation of this margin is also shown in Exhibit XI, page 3. 
 
Summary 
 
The total margin on the variables comprising the provision for adverse deviation is $772,000.  Therefore, the 
final actuarial liabilities can be summarized as follows: 
 
1. Discounted Claims Liabilities in connection with Unearned Premiums 
 at December 31, 2008 $3,308,000 
2. Provision for Adverse Deviation 772,000 
3. Discounted Claims Liabilities in connection with Unearned Premiums plus   $4,080,000 
 Provision for Adverse Deviation* 

 

* Claims liabilities are equal to the discounted claims liabilities plus the provision for adverse deviation as per the Canadian Institute 
of Actuaries standard of practice. 
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Reconciliation with Annual Return 
 
Reconciliation of policy liabilities reported in the Annual Return to the actuary's estimate: 
 
  Source 
1. Net unearned premiums reported by CLLAS  $ 4,860,000 Annual Return 
2. Other liabilities reported by CLLAS   0 Annual Return 
3. Deferred policy acquisition expense reported by CLLAS   365,000 Annual Return 
4. ((1) + (2) - (3))  $ 4,495,000  
5. Actuary's estimate of net policy liability   4,406,000  
6. Margin (deficiency) ((4) - (5))  $ 89,000  
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PART 4 - COMMENTARY - OTHER ACTUARIAL LIABILITIES 

As at December 31, 2008, CLLAS has a premium liability of $2,442,000 in connection with its proportional 
reinsurance arrangements for policy years 2002/2003 and 2003/2004.  The agreements specify that the total 
deposit premium is to be adjusted from inception and annually thereafter and is to be calculated at 100/70ths 
of the total of all known incurred liabilities in respect of the aggregate of claims covered in the layer $7.5MM 
in excess of $5.0MM.  The agreements also specify that the total deposit premium is to be adjusted from 
inception and annually thereafter and is to be calculated at 100/75ths of the total of all known incurred 
liabilities in respect of the aggregate of claims covered in the layer $12.5MM in excess of $12.5MM.          
The detail of the calculation of this liability is shown in Exhibit XII. 
 
In addition to this provision, CLLAS also has a $188,000 liability from amounts previously received (through 
yearly adjustments) from it reinsurers in respect of the agreements stated above. 
 
The premium adjustment provision in these arrangements has been discontinued from policy year 2004/2005 
onwards. 
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PART 4 - COMMENTARY - REINSURANCE 

DESCRIPTION OF REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
The reinsurance arrangements are summarized as follows: 
 
Proportional Reinsurance 
CLLAS has had proportional reinsurance arrangements since inception.  Reinsurance ceded is on a claims 
made basis.  CLLAS coverage is divided into various layers and a certain proportion in each layer is ceded to 
different reinsurers.  CLLAS is also retaining a variable proportion of each layer. 
 
Aggregate Reinsurance 
CLLAS has arranged since July 1, 1989 aggregate reinsurance with Colchester which is applicable to its 
retention after reflection of proportional reinsurance.   
 
The above reinsurance arrangements are summarized in Schedule 1. 
 
In June 1996, the following changes were made to CLLAS non-proportional reinsurance arrangements with 
Colchester retrospectively for the policy periods 1993/1994 to 1995/1996 and for future policy periods unless 
the arrangement is terminated by either CLLAS or Colchester. 
 
• As per the initial reinsurance terms, CLLAS’ non-proportional reinsurer was assuming the first 

$3,000,000 of CLLAS net of proportional aggregate retention.  As a result of the June 1996 amendments, 
CLLAS assumes the first $250,000 of this $3,000,000 aggregate retention. 

 
• The initial premium paid by CLLAS for each of these policy periods is subject to an adjustment, plus or 

minus, if actual losses are above or below a permissible loss ratio of 70%. 
 
• The additional premium payable is subject to a maximum of 25% of the initial (deposit) premium, while 

the return premium is subject to a maximum of 10% of the initial premium. 
 
• Any premium payable which is in excess of the 25% maximum adjustment is carried forward to 

subsequent policy periods, unless the retrospective rating arrangement is terminated by either CLLAS or 
Colchester.  Similarly any premium receivable by CLLAS which is in excess of the maximum 10% 
adjustment, is carried forward to the subsequent policy periods. 

 
• The first retrospective premium adjustment is made 24 months after the expiration of each policy period 

on the basis of the losses paid at the time of the adjustment and subsequent adjustments are made 
annually thereafter. 
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However, in June 1998 the reinsurance arrangements between CLLAS and Colchester have again been 
modified as follows: 
 
• The retrospective rating arrangement applicable to policy years 1993/1994 to 1997/1998 has been 

terminated.  As a result any premium liability arising from such arrangement as of  
June 30, 1998 has been eliminated. 

 
• Also the deficit carry-forward of $3,733,000 as of December 31, 1997 under such retrospective rating 

arrangement has been eliminated as of June 30, 1998. 
 
• For the 1998/1999 policy period CLLAS will retain the first $3,300,000 of its net of proportional 

aggregate retention instead of $250,000 and Colchester will assume $4,700,000 excess of CLLAS new 
$3,300,000 aggregate retention after proportional reinsurance. 

 
• CLLAS will also assume $6,000,000 excess of $8,000,000 of its aggregate retention after proportional 

reinsurance. 
 
• Colchester will continue to assume $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after 

proportional reinsurance. 
 
• It was also agreed between CLLAS and Colchester that the revised 1998/1999 reinsurance arrangements 

would apply retroactively to fiscal year 1995/1996. 
 
On June 30, 2003, the reinsurance arrangements between CLLAS and Colchester have been modified as 
follows: 
 
• For the 2002/2003, 2003/2004 and 2004/2005 policy periods CLLAS retains the first $5,500,000 of its 

net proportional aggregate losses. Colchester assumes $7,500,000 in excess of CLLAS’ $5,500,000 
aggregate retention after proportional reinsurance.  CLLAS also retains $7,000,000 of its net proportional 
aggregate losses in excess of the underlying $13,000,000 net of proportional reinsurance and Colchester 
assumes losses in the layer $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000. 

  
On June 30, 2005, the reinsurance arrangements between CLLAS and Colchester have been modified as 
follows: 
 
• For the 2005/2006 policy period CLLAS retains the first $5,500,000 of its net proportional aggregate 

losses. Colchester assumes $9,500,000 in excess of CLLAS’ $5,500,000 aggregate retention after 
proportional reinsurance.  CLLAS also retains $5,000,000 of its net proportional aggregate losses in 
excess of the underlying $15,000,000 net of proportional reinsurance and Colchester assumes losses in 
the layer $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000. 

 
On June 30, 2006, the reinsurance arrangements between CLLAS and Colchester have been modified as 
follows: 
 
• For the 2006/2007 through 2008/2009 policy periods CLLAS retains the first $15,000,000 of its net 

proportional aggregate losses.  Colchester assumes $5,000,000 in excess of CLLAS’ $15,000,000 
aggregate retention after proportional reinsurance.  Colchester also assumes losses in the layer 
$20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000. 
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• Starting in policy period 2008/2009, CLLAS’ retention of $250,000 to which claims would “drop down” 
and attach to in certain instances has been reduced to $25,000.  However, Colchester does not assume the 
additional exposure between $25,000 and $250,000. 

 
 
RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS FROM REINSURERS 
 
The amounts assumed to be recoverable from reinsurers in the calculation of the net policy liabilities are as 
follows: 
 

Claim Liabilities   $45,477,000 
Unearned Premium   $6,645,000 
Total    $52,122,000 

 
 
UNUSUAL PROBLEMS OR DELAYS 
 
I have discussed reinsurance matters with the management and the external auditor of CLLAS regarding 
whether there are unusual problems and/or delays expected to be encountered in the collection of amounts 
from the reinsurers.  I have specifically discussed the following situations with the management and the 
external auditor with respect to proportional reinsurers. 
 
• A reinsurance contract or cover note is not signed. 
• A dispute has arisen with a reinsurer. 
• A reinsurer that has a history of not settling accounts properly. 
• A reinsurer's experience under a treaty is so bad or other circumstance exists that cause there to be a 

high probability that the reinsurer will deny liability. 
• A reinsurer that is known to have been the subject of regulatory restrictions in its home jurisdiction. 
• Insolvent reinsurers. 
 
As mentioned earlier in the report, CLLAS’ management has commented that reinsurance disputes regarding 
claim 2004-194 will likely be resolved in CLLAS’ favour.  I am monitoring this situation closely and do not 
feel it is necessary to make additional provisions at this time. 
 
As stated earlier in this report, all CLLAS proportional reinsurers are believed to be in sound financial 
condition.  All have a Best Rating of A- or better except for Unionamerica which has not been rated by rating 
agencies since January 2001, time at which the company was placed into run-off. Unionamerica assumes 
4.02% of layer $7.5 million xs $5.0 million and 1.36% of layer $12.5 million xs $12.5 million in policy 
periods 1998/1999 to 2000/2001. 
 
I am not aware of the existence of any of the above situations or unusual problems or delays which could 
affect the collection of amounts recoverable from other proportional reinsurers. 
 
Based on my review of the reinsurance agreements in place for the business underwritten by CLLAS, and my 
discussions with management, to the best of my knowledge, there are no material financial reinsurance 
agreements. 
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COLCHESTER REINSURANCE LIMITED 
 
Colchester is an off-shore captive reinsurer domiciled in Barbados.  The shareholders of Colchester are 
thirteen Toronto based legal firms or their related service corporations.  Those thirteen shareholders are 
unrelated to each other.  However, each of Colchester’s shareholders is, or is related to, one of CLLAS’ 
fourteen subscribers. 
 
Since July 1, 1989 Colchester has provided aggregate reinsurance to CLLAS.  The terms of the current 
aggregate reinsurance arrangements provided to CLLAS are described in Schedule I.  As far as I am aware, 
Colchester does not provide reinsurance to any other entity than CLLAS. 
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PART 5 - DATABASE AND EXHIBITS 

This section contains the database summary and exhibits used in the current valuation.  
 
RECONCILIATION    
 
A reconciliation of the claims data used in this valuation with CLLAS' records was performed.  I am satisfied 
that no material data was omitted.  The details of my reconciliation are as follows: 
 

 Gross Paid 
at 12/31/2008 

Gross Case Reserves 
at 12/31/2008 

1. Reported in CLLAS' financial records   $129,645,000  $13,449,000 
2. Reported in claim bordereaux  129,645,000  13,449,000 
3. Difference  $                 0  $               0 
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LIST OF SCHEDULES 
 
Schedule 1   CLLAS Reinsurance Arrangements  
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit I Page 1 Cumulative Paid Losses and ALAE - Gross Basis 
Exhibit I Page 2 Case Reserves - Gross Basis 
Exhibit I Page 3 Incurred Losses - Gross Basis 
Exhibit I Page 4 Cumulative Number of Claims Reported - Gross Basis 
Exhibit I Page 5 Number of Claims Open - Gross Basis 
Exhibit I Page 6 Cumulative Paid Losses and ALAE - Net Basis 
Exhibit I Page 7 Case Reserves - Net Basis 
Exhibit I Page 8 Incurred Losses - Net Basis 
Exhibit I Page 9 Cumulative Number of Claims Reported - Net Basis 
Exhibit I Page 10 Number of Claims Open - Net Basis 
Exhibit II  IBNR - Reflecting Proportional Reinsurance 
Exhibit III  Indicated Loss Development Factors for Losses in Excess of Various per 

Occurrence Retentions 
Exhibit IV  Determination of the Provision for Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses 
Exhibit V  Amount Unrecoverable (Walbrook) 
Exhibit VI  Gross and Net of Proportional Experience 
Exhibit VII  Aggregate and Net of Aggregate Experience 
Exhibit VIII  Net Experience 
Exhibit IX  Gross and Net Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Ratio 
Exhibit X  Provision for Adverse Deviation - Claims Liabilities 
Exhibit XI Page 1 Premium Liabilities 
Exhibit XI Page 2 Provision for Adverse Deviation – Gross Liabilities in Connection with 

Unearned Premium 
Exhibit XI Page 3 Provision for Adverse Deviation – Net Liabilities in Connection with 

Unearned Premium 
Exhibit XII  Premium Liability 
Exhibit XIII  Summary of Net Undiscounted and Net Discounted Claims Liabilities 
Exhibit XIV  Summary of Net Outstanding Liabilities and Provision for Adverse Deviation 

by Year 
Exhibit XV  Comparison of Net Actual Experience with Net Expected Experience from 

the December 31, 2003, December 31, 2004, December 31, 2005, December 
31, 2006, December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008 Valuations 

Exhibit XVI  Unpaid Claims and Loss Ratio Analysis Exhibit 
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PART 6 - DATA RELIABILITY AND CONSISTENCY 

DATA 
 
I have relied on the following data provided by CLLAS as at December 31, 2008: 
 
• Individual claims transaction data. 
• Reinsurance ceded to all the reinsurers. 
• Written premiums. 
• Number of lawyers insured. 
• Draft financial statements. 
 
RELIANCE AND VERIFICATION 
 
I have relied on those data in the preparation of this report.  I have not audited such data except to observe its 
consistency with prior years and to perform those checks necessary to satisfy myself that the information 
provides a reliable and sufficient basis for estimating the ultimate policy liabilities. 
 
I have performed a reconciliation of the claims and premium data used in this valuation with the CLLAS' 
records and am satisfied that no material data was omitted.  The details of my reconciliation can be found in 
Part 5 of this report. 
 
I have relied on the external auditor of CLLAS, Deloitte & Touche, to verify the accuracy of CLLAS' 
records.  I have received assurance from the external auditor that CLLAS’ data is complete.  
 
Policy liabilities are estimates.  Future emergence of loss and loss adjustment expenses may differ from our 
estimates.  In estimating these liabilities, I have used procedures and assumptions that I believe are reasonable 
and appropriate, given the data available. 
 



 

 

SCHEDULE 1 
 
CLLAS REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Proportional Basis: 
 Portion Reinsured with: 
 Fiscal Layer Retained Registered Unregistered 
 Period (in million $) Portion Companies Companies 
 
7/1987 - 6/1988 $4.4  xs  $0.6 50.00% 0.00% 50.00% 
 $5.0  xs  $5.0 8.00% 78.16% 13.84% 
 $15.0 xs $10.0 16.00% 53.50% 30.50% 
 
7/1988 - 6/1989 $4.0  xs  $1.0 50.00% 0.00% 50.00% 
 $5.0  xs  $5.0 8.00% 74.90% 17.10% 
 $15.0 xs $10.0 17.33% 54.38% 28.29% 
 
7/1989 - 3/1990 $4.0  xs  $1.0 50.00% 0.00% 50.00% 
 $5.0  xs  $5.0 8.00% 75.87% 16.13% 
 $15.0 xs $10.0 17.33% 62.51% 20.16% 
 
4/1990 - 6/1990 $4.0  xs  $1.0 50.00% 27.50% 22.50% 
 $5.0  xs  $5.0 8.00% 75.87% 16.13% 
 $15.0 xs $10.0 17.33% 68.13% 14.54% 
 
7/1990 - 6/1991 $4.0  xs  $1.0 50.00% 50.00% 0.00% 
 $5.0  xs  $5.0 8.00% 81.10% 10.90% 
 $15.0 xs $10.0 17.33% 74.49% 8.18% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 79.55% 20.45% 
 
7/1991 - 6/1992 $4.0  xs  $1.0 50.00% 50.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5  xs  $5.0 20.00% 71.50% 8.50% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 72.52% 9.48% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 79.75% 20.25% 
 
7/1992 - 6/1993 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 50.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 71.60% 8.40% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 75.34% 6.66% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 89.81% 10.19% 



 

 

SCHEDULE 1  (cont’d...) 
 
CLLAS REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
Proportional Basis: 
 Portion Reinsured with: 
 Fiscal Layer Retained Registered Unregistered 
 Period (in million $) Portion Companies Companies 
 
7/1993 - 6/1994 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 50.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 73.62% 6.38% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 75.44% 6.56% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 86.41% 13.59% 
 
7/1994 - 6/1995 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 44.58% 5.42% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 74.93% 5.07% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 76.30% 5.70% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 85.48% 14.52% 
 
7/1995 - 6/1996 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 42.35% 7.65% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.21% 4.79% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.41% 4.59% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 81.80% 5.70% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 88.12% 11.88% 
 
7/1996 - 6/1997 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 42.94% 7.06% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.22% 4.78% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.97% 4.03% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 81.80% 5.70% 
 $25.0 xs $50.0 0.00% 87.74% 12.26% 
 
7/1997 - 6/1998 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4.0 xs $1.0 50.00% 42.94% 7.06% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 74.34% 5.66% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.97% 4.03% 
 $10.0 xs $25.0 12.50% 79.03% 8.47% 
 $25.0  xs $50.0 0.00% 87.17% 12.83% 
 $15.0 xs $120.0 0.00% 89.02% 10.98% 



 

 

SCHEDULE 1  (cont’d...) 
 
Proportional Basis: 
    Portion Reinsured with: 
 Fiscal Layer Retained Registered Unregistered 
 Period (in million $) Portion Companies Companies 
 
 
7/1998 - 6/1999 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 50.00% 42.63% 7.37% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 74.04% 5.96% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.93% 4.07%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 79.03% 8.47% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 87.17% 12.83%  
 $20 xs $130 0.00%  89.02% 10.98% 
 
7/1999 - 6/2000 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 50.00% 46.80% 3.20% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.98% 4.02% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.61% 4.39%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 79.12% 8.38% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 86.00% 14.00%  
 $20 xs $130 0.00%  88.16% 11.84% 
 
7/2000 - 6/2001 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 50.00% 46.80% 3.20% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.98% 4.02% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.61% 4.39%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 79.12% 8.38% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 86.00% 14.00%  
 $20 xs $140 0.00%  88.16% 11.84% 
 
7/2001 - 6/2002 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 50.00% 46.80% 3.20% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 80.00% 0.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 78.97% 3.03%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 79.12% 8.38% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 86.00% 14.00%  
 $20 xs $140 0.00%  88.16% 11.84%  
 
7/2002 - 6/2003 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 80.00% 0.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 82.00% 0.00%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 63.42% 24.08% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 76.46% 23.54%  
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 18.23% 81.77%  



 

  

SCHEDULE 1  (cont’d...) 
 
Proportional Basis: 
    Portion Reinsured with: 
 Fiscal Layer Retained Registered Unregistered 
 Period (in million $) Portion Companies Companies 
 
 
7/2003 - 6/2004 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 80.00% 0.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 82.00% 0.00%  
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 57.50% 30.00% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00% 73.85% 26.15%  
 $20 xs $140 0.00%  9.66% 90.34%  
 
7/2004 - 6/2005 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%  
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.00% 5.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 82.00% 0.00% 
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 63.05% 24.45% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00%  74.86% 25.14% 
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 9.66%  90.34% 
 
7/2005 - 6/2006 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%  
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.00% 5.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 80.00% 2.00% 
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00%  100.00% 0.00% 
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 36.00%  64.00% 
 
7/2006 - 6/2007 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%  
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 20.00% 75.00% 5.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.00% 5.00% 
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00%  100.00% 0.00% 
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 36.00%  64.00% 
 $20 xs $160 0.00% 100.00%  0.00% 
 
7/2007 - 6/2008 $0.75 xs $0.25 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 30.00% 65.00% 5.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 18.00% 77.00% 5.00% 
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00%  100.00% 0.00% 
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 36.00%  64.00% 
 $20 xs $160 0.00% 100.00%  0.00% 



 

  

SCHEDULE 1    (cont’d) 
 
Proportional Basis: 
    Portion Reinsured with: 
 Fiscal Layer Retained Registered Unregistered 
 Period (in million $) Portion Companies Companies 
 
 
7/2008 - 6/2009 $0.75 xs $0.025 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $4 xs $1.0 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
 $7.5 xs $5.0 35.00% 60.00% 5.00% 
 $12.5 xs $12.5 24.00% 71.00% 5.00% 
 $10 xs $25 12.50% 87.50% 0.00% 
 $30 xs $50 0.00%  100.00% 0.00% 
 $20 xs $140 0.00% 36.00%  64.00% 
 $30 xs $160 0.00% 100.00%  0.00% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

SCHEDULE 1    (cont’d) 
 
CLLAS REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS  
 
Aggregate Basis Ceded to Unregistered Company: 
 
7/1989 - 6/1990 a) Aggregate of $750,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of proportional 

reinsurance, and 
b) $4,250,000 excess $15,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 

proportional reinsurance. 
 

7/1990 - 6/1991 a) Aggregate of $900,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of proportional 
reinsurance, and 

b) $4,250,000 excess of $15,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
proportional reinsurance. 

 
7/1991 - 6/1992 a) Aggregate of $1,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of proportional 

reinsurance, and 
b) $25,000,000 excess of $12,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 

proportional reinsurance. 
 

7/1992 - 6/1993 a) Aggregate of $1,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of proportional 
reinsurance, and 

b) $25,000,000 excess of $12,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
proportional reinsurance. 

 
7/1993 - 6/1994 a) Aggregate of $2,750,000 excess of $250,000 of CLLAS retention after 

reflection of proportional reinsurance, and   
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 

proportional reinsurance. 
 

7/1994 - 6/1995 a) Aggregate of $2,750,000 excess of $250,000 of CLLAS retention after 
reflection of proportional reinsurance, and   

b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
proportional reinsurance. 

 
7/1995 - 6/1996 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 

reflection of proportional reinsurance, and   
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 

proportional reinsurance. 
 

7/1996 - 6/1997 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 
reflection of proportional reinsurance, and  

b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
proportional reinsurance. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

SCHEDULE 1    (cont’d) 
 
CLLAS REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Aggregate Basis Ceded to Unregistered Company: 
 
7/1998 - 6/1999 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 

reflection of proportional reinsurance, and  
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 

proportional reinsurance. 

7/1999 – 6/2000 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

7/2000 – 6/2001 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

7/2001 – 6/2002 a) Aggregate of $4,700,000 excess of $3,300,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b) $14,000,000 excess of $14,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

7/2002 – 6/2003 a) Aggregate of $7,500,000 excess of $5,500,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b) $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

7/2003 – 6/2004 a)   Aggregate of $7,500,000 excess of $5,500,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 
 

7/2004 – 6/2005 a)   Aggregate of $7,500,000 excess of $5,500,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 
 

7/2005 – 6/2006 a)   Aggregate of $9,500,000 excess of $5,500,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 
 

7/2006 – 6/2007 a)   Aggregate of $5,000,000 excess of $15,000,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 
 

7/2007 – 6/2008 a)   Aggregate of $5,000,000 excess of $15,000,000 of CLLAS retention after 
 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

 



 

  

SCHEDULE 1    (cont’d) 
 
CLLAS REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Aggregate Basis Ceded to Unregistered Company: 
 
7/2008 – 6/2009 a)   Aggregate of $5,000,000 excess of $15,000,000 of CLLAS retention after 

 reflection of proportional reinsurance, and 
b)   $20,000,000 excess of $20,000,000 of CLLAS retention after reflection of 
 proportional reinsurance 

 

























































































































































































Reinsurer A.M. Best Rating S&P Rating

Lloyd's A (Excellent) A+ (Strong)

Aspen Re A (Excellent) A (Strong)

Hannover Ruck A (Excellent) AA- (Very Strong)

Arch Insurance Company of Canada A (Excellent) A (Strong)

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd. A (Excellent) A- (Strong)

CRC (Bermuda) Reinsurance Ltd. A (Excellent) Rating Not Available

GCAN Insurance Company A (Excellent) BBB (Good)

SCOR Canada Reinsurance Company A- (Excellent) A- (Strong)

Swiss Reinsurance Company Canada  (Note 1) A+ (Superior) AA- (Very Strong)

Toa Reinsurance Company of America A (Excellent) A+ (Strong)

Transatlantic Reinsurance Company (Note 2) A (Excellent) A+ (Strong)

Note 1:  Currently under review by both A.M. Best and S&P.

Note 2:  Downgraded from previous report in September 2008 when A.M. Best rating was A+ (Superior) and
              S&P rating was AA- (Very Strong).  A.M. Best has classified their current outlook as "negative".

CANADIAN LAWYERS LIABILITY ASSURANCE SOCIETY

2008/2009 Reinsurers Security Rating
as of February 9, 2009
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Assurance Society
Report to the Audit Committee of the Advisory Board
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Brookfield Place
181 Bay Street
Suite 1400
Toronto, ON  M5J 2V1

Tel:   (416) 601-6150 
Fax:  (416) 601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca

February 20, 2009

The Members of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Dear Committee Members:

We are pleased to present this report to you on the completion of the 2008 external audit of Canadian Lawyers 
Liability Assurance Society.

This report summarizes the results of our audit and includes representations and comments designed to assist you in 
discharging your responsibilities as audit committee members.  We look forward to discussing our report with you and 
responding to your questions.

This report has been provided to the Audit Committee of CLLAS on a confidential basis.  It is intended solely for the 
use of the Audit Committee to assist it in discharging its responsibilities with respect to the financial statements and is 
not intended for any other purpose.  We disclaim any responsibility or obligation to any third party who may rely on 
this report.  The matters addressed in this report are a byproduct of the financial statement audit and the audit would 
not necessarily identify all matters that may be of interest to the Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities.

Yours sincerely, 

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Status of the Audit, Its Scope and 
Related Representations

• The 2008 audit of the financial statements is substantially complete, pending 
receipt of the management representation letter and completion of a few 
remaining audit procedures and reviews. 

• We anticipate that our audit opinion will be unqualified.

• We continue to be independent of CLLAS and provide formal confirmation of this 
in Appendix A.

• The audit approach was consistent with our plan and complies with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards and our firm’s standards for the audit of 
insurance entities.

• We considered the work of the Appointed Actuary in formulating an opinion on 
the financial statements.  Our audit incorporated additional work by our 
consulting actuary Ms. Barb Addie, in accordance with the CICA assurance and 
related services guideline (“AuG-43”).  We complied with the joint policy 
statement of the CICA and the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.
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Status of the Audit, Its Scope and 
Related Representations, Cont’d

• No limitations were placed on the scope of our audit.  We had complete access 
during the year to officers and employees, and to all books and records 
required to perform our audit.  We received full cooperation and appropriate 
representations from management.
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Management’s and Directors’ Responsibilities 
for Financial Information

• As you are aware, management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements. We have requested a letter from 
management acknowledging this responsibility which includes 
representations on outstanding litigation and other contingent exposures.  

• Our understanding is that you recognize your responsibility as Directors 
for reviewing and approving financial statements and overseeing 
management responsibility for:

- the preparation and presentation of financial statements;
- maintenance of appropriate internal controls; and
- assessment of significant related party transactions.
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Our Audit Opinions

• Our opinion on the 2008 financial statements will:

- be signed following approval by the Audit Committee; and
- state that the financial position, results of operations and cash flows are fairly 

stated in all material respects.

• Regulatory Reporting

- Financial statements in the P&C-1 annual return are, in substance, the same 
as these financial statements.  Our report on these financial statements will 
also be unqualified.
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Matters to be Communicated to the Audit Committee

• Overleaf, we provide a list of matters that are required to be reported to the 
Audit Committee by our professional standards and our findings on such 
matters. Our findings are based on the audit work considered necessary by 
us to render our opinion on the Society’s financial statements.
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Matters to be Communicated to the Audit Committee

Reportable Matter Comments 

1.  Significant weaknesses in internal controls relating to the preparation 
 of financial statements. 

 None noted. 

2.  Illegal acts.  None noted. 

3.  Significant transactions inconsistent with the ordinary course of 
 business, including fraud or possible fraud. 

 None noted. 

4.  Unusual related party transactions.  None noted. 

5.  New significant accounting principles or policies.  Capital and financial instruments disclosures. 

6.   Disagreements with management.  None noted. 

7.  Management consultation with other accountants about any significant 
 auditing or accounting matters. 

 None noted. 

8.   Unusual transactions that significantly increase the risk of loss.  See discussion of Hollinger claim reinsurance recoveries 

9.  Actions that, if they became public, might cause embarrassment.  None noted. 

10.  Non-compliance with regulatory requirements.  None noted. 

11.  Major issues discussed with management that influence audit 
 appointment. 

 None. 

12.  Management’s judgments and accounting estimates.  See key areas of audit focus. 

13.  Misstatements, including unadjusted audit differences.  See reporting and control matters. 

14.  Difficulties encountered during the audit.  None. 

15.  Limitations placed on the scope of our audit.  None. 
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Key Areas of Audit Focus

Our audit covered all significant areas of the CLLAS operations. Particular 
audit focus was placed upon actuarial liabilities and reinsurance. 

Actuarial & Claims

• As per our Audit Plan and in accordance with the requirements of CICA AuG-43, 
our consulting actuary reviewed and tested the work of the Appointed Actuary.

• The work has been successfully completed and we are able to conclude:

– The assumptions used to calculate the policy liabilities are reasonable and appropriate 
to the circumstances;

– Our recalculation of the policy liabilities did not produce materially different results on a 
net basis and are within the range of accepted actuarial practice on a gross basis;

– The estimate of the equity in the UPR and the maximum allowable deferred policy 
acquisition expenses are appropriate.
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Key Areas of Audit Focus (cont’d)

Unpaid Claims and Adjustment Expenses

• Claims files handling by CLLAS staff appear complete and related reserve 
amounts appear appropriate, based on our audit tests.

Premiums

• There were no retro-assessments in 2008. 

• Accounts receivable also includes outstanding balances relating to the 
January 1, 2008 semi-annual premium installment. 

• There was no merger activity during 2008, the insured lawyer count has 
increased marginally.

• Consistent with the soft market trend and positive claims experiences, the 
premium rate has declined.
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Key Areas of Audit Focus (cont’d)

Reinsurance

• CLLAS’ continues to retain 100% of the first $5M of claims before adjustment for 
self-insured retention and available law society mandatory coverage.

• The Society’s maximum exposure on current period claims after reinsurance is 
$11,850,000 on losses up to $220M.

• Colchester provides annual aggregate stop-loss coverage of $25,000,000 excess 
of $15,000,000 applied to 100% of the Society’s net liability for that portion of 
each loss which is in excess of $250,000.
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Key Areas of Audit Focus (cont’d)

Reinsurance Cont’d
• We reviewed the audited financial statements of Colchester as at June 30, 

2008.

• We have discussed with the General Manager the dispute with the lead 
reinsurer on the Hollinger claim and the related outstanding reinsurance 
recoveries.  The matter is currently proceeding towards binding arbitration.  It 
is our view that this represents a material contingency which should be 
disclosed in the financial statements in a manner consistent with CICA 3290.15 
and .22.

Premium Deficiency
• Based upon analyses prepared by the actuary, the Society has concluded that 

no premium deficiency exists in the current year.
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Key Areas of Audit Focus (cont’d)

Tax Status

• As disclosed in Note 7 of the financial statements, the Society does not pay tax 
on its investment or operating income.  It does pay 3% premium tax to the 
Province of Ontario and the Ontario subscribers also pay 8% provincial sales 
tax.

• The tax filing position adopted by the Society is consistent with that adopted by 
other reciprocal insurance exchanges regulated by FSCO.  

• We have recommended in prior years that with the significant turnover of 
executive committee members since the inception of the Society, it may be 
prudent to have the documentation of the Society and its member’s tax 
positions updated periodically.  
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Reporting and Control Matters

• We have not encountered any accounting or control issues that we believe 
could involve material exposure relative to the 2008 financial statements.

• We do not have any misstatements or unadjusted errors to report.
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Outstanding Items

• As of February 18, the following items are outstanding:
– Bank confirmation from TD Bank related to money market funds as at 

December 31, 2008. Follow up has taken place both from our side as well as 
by the General Manager.

– Management representation letter
– Engagement letter
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In Conclusion

• We thank Dion Durrell + Associates, Inc. for their contribution towards ensuring 
that our respective duties and responsibilities are discharged in a comprehensive 
and efficient manner.

• We would also be pleased to receive comments and suggestions from Audit 
Committee members.  This is particularly important because you, and the firms 
you represent, are our primary client.

• We would be pleased to address any questions you might have.
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Confirmation of Independence



Confirmation of Independence

February 20, 2009

The Audit Committee of
Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society

Dear Audit Committee Members:

We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society (the Society) 
for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate at least annually with you 
regarding all relationships between the Society and our Firm that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and related 
interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;
(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant influence 

over the financial or accounting policies of a client;
(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners, either directly 

or indirectly, with a client;
(d) economic dependence on a client; and
(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement. 



Confirmation of Independence (cont’d)

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence matters 
arising since February 21, 2008, the date of our last letter.

We are not aware of any relationships between the Society and our Firm that, in our professional judgment, may 
reasonably be thought to bear on independence, that have occurred from February 21, 2008 to February 20, 2009.

The total fees charged to the Society for audit services were $51,800 for the December 31, 2008 audit. 

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to the audit committee in the context of the Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we are 
independent with respect to the Society within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of February 20, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the use of the audit committee, the board of directors, management, and others 
within the Society and should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter at our upcoming meeting on February 20, 
2009.

Yours truly,

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Brookfield Place 
181 Bay Street 
Suite 1400 
Toronto ON  M5J 2V1 
Canada 
 
Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca 

Auditors’ Report 
 
 
To the Advisory Board of the 
Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society 
 
We have audited the balance sheet of the Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society (the “Society”) 
as at December 31, 2008 and the statements of operations and subscribers’ equity, comprehensive income 
and of accumulated other comprehensive income, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Society's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Society as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
 

 
 
 
Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
February 13, 2009 
 
 

  

  



Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society
Balance sheet
as at December 31, 2008

2008 2007
$ $

Assets
Cash at Bank 7,156,634      3,880,117        
Short-term investments  (Note 3) 14,371,754    13,015,785      
Bonds (Note 3) 30,737,108    24,874,410      
Interest income due and accrued 248,097         215,873           
Premiums receivable (Note 5) 6,505,277      10,668,627      
Unearned reinsurance premiums ceded 7,199,019      8,412,949        
Prepaid expenses 249,370         323,764           
Deferred policy acquisition costs 364,772         405,601           
Reinsurance recoverable (Note 12) 10,738,527    9,678,364        
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses

recoverable from reinsurers (Note 4) 45,477,000    48,647,000      
123,047,558  120,122,490    

Liabilities
Provision for unpaid claims and 

adjustment expenses (Note 4) 80,511,000    80,968,000      
Unearned premium 12,059,120    13,446,144      
Due to reinsurers 8,513,910      9,642,789        
Accounts payable and accrued charges 564,151         498,544           

101,648,181  104,555,477    

Subscribers' equity
Minimum surplus 50,000           50,000             
Additional surplus 19,973,669    15,424,949      
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,375,708      92,064             

21,399,377    15,567,013      
Total liabilities and subscribers' equity 123,047,558  120,122,490    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society
Statements of comprehensive income and of
accumulated other comprehensive income
year ended December 31, 2008

2008 2007
$ $

Comprehensive income
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale

financial assets arising during the year 1,283,644 (175,918)     
 Reclassification adjustment for realized gain/loss 

included in income -                -                 
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,283,644 (175,918)     

Net income for the year 4,548,720 5,491,522   
Comprehensive income 5,832,364 5,315,604   

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of year 92,064       -                 
Transitional adjustment -                267,982      
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,283,644 (175,918)     

Balance at end of year 1,375,708 92,064        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society
Statement of operations and subscribers' equity
year ended December 31, 2008

2008 2007
$ $

Premiums

Written premium 24,318,114 27,040,048    
Reinsurance ceded 14,517,359 16,918,348    
Net written premiums 9,800,755   10,121,700    
Change in unearned premiums 173,095       1,079,625      
Earned premium 9,973,850   11,201,325    

Expenses
Claims (Note 4) 4,516,547   4,894,879      
Operating Expenses 1,832,000   1,618,418      
Premium taxes 770,371       905,943        

7,118,918   7,419,240      

Underwriting gain for the year 2,854,932   3,782,085      
Investment income (Note 3) 1,693,788   1,709,437      
 
Net income for the year 4,548,720   5,491,522      
Other comprehensive income 1,283,644   92,064          
Subscribers' equity, beginning of the year 15,567,013 10,830,427    
Transitional adjustments (Note 4) -                  (847,000)       
Subscribers' equity, end of the year 21,399,377 15,567,013    

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society
Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2008

2008 2007
$ $

Operating
Net income for the year 4,548,720     5,491,522       
Changes in non-cash working capital components

Change in amortization of bond discount 9,406            (33,082)           
Interest income due and accrued (32,224)         (58,548)           
Premiums receivable 4,163,350     (3,985,624)      
Unearned reinsurance premiums ceded 1,213,930     2,015,220       
Prepaid expenses 74,394          (191,264)         
Deferred policy acquisition costs 40,829          94,741            
Reinsurance recoverable (1,060,163)    683,584          
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 

recoverable from reinsurers 3,170,000     3,558,000       
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (457,000)       975,000          
Unearned premiums (1,387,024)    (3,094,845)      
Due to reinsurers (1,128,879)    (1,316,235)      
Accounts payable and accrued charges 65,607          (185,347)         
Premium taxes payable -                    (258,607)         

9,220,946     3,694,515       

Investing
Purchase of bonds (6,827,779)    (8,872,691)      
Maturities and disposal of bonds 2,200,000     1,350,000       
Purchase of short-term investments (54,177,757)  (41,019,829)    
Disposal of short-term investments 52,812,381   34,260,058      
Amortization of bond premium 48,726          53,650            

(5,944,429)    (14,228,812)    
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 3,276,517     (10,534,297)    
Cash balance, beginning of year 3,880,117     14,414,414      
Cash balance, end of year 7,156,634     3,880,117       

Cash balance comprises
Cash at Bank 7,156,634     3,880,117       

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1. Description of business 

The Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society ("the Society") was formed under the 
Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement for Select Canadian Law Firms dated 
December 22, 1986 ("Subscription Agreement"). The Society is licensed by the Financial 
Services Commission of Ontario to provide lawyers professional liability insurance to its 
subscribers in accordance with Part XIII of the Insurance Act of Ontario, R.S.O. 1990. The 
Society commenced operations on June 30, 1987. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles and reflect the following policies: 

Investments 

The investment portfolio, bonds and short term investments, are classified as available-for-sale 
and their fair value is determined using quoted market bid prices. The Society does not have 
investments in bonds or other investments for which the fair value is determined using a 
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices 
or rates. 

Available-for-sale investments are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value recorded 
as unrealized gains and losses, which is included in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). 
Realized gains and losses on sale, as well as losses from other than a temporary decline in 
value, are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income and recorded in net 
investment income in the statement of operations. 

Transaction costs related to the purchase of these bonds are recorded as part of the carrying 
value of the bond at the date of purchase. Discounts or premiums on the purchase of bonds are 
deferred and amortized over the remaining term of the bonds. 

Available-for-sale bonds are assessed for impairment at least on a quarterly basis.  When there 
is objective evidence that an available-for-sale bond is impaired and the decline in value is 
considered other than temporary, the loss accumulated in OCI is reclassified to net investment 
income.  Once an impairment loss is recorded to income, it is not reversed.  Following the 
impairment loss recognition, these assets will continue to be recorded at fair value with changes 
in fair value recorded to OCI, and tested for further impairment quarterly.  Objective evidence of 
impairment includes financial difficulty of the issuer, bankruptcy or defaults and delinquency in 
payments of interest or principal.  

Revenue recognition 

Premiums are recorded as written at the inception date of the policies and deferred as unearned 
premiums to be taken into income as earned on a pro-rata basis over the terms of the 
underlying policies. A corresponding portion of reinsurance premiums are deferred as unearned 
reinsurance premiums ceded. Retro-assessment calls are recorded as written and earned at the 
date of approval by the Society’s Advisory Board. Premium taxes are recorded as deferred 
policy acquisition costs and expensed in the periods in which related premiums are earned. 
Premium taxes are only deferred to the extent that unearned premiums exceed anticipated 
future claims and expenses less investment income on funds backing unearned premiums. 

Certain of the Society’s reinsurance contracts contain Additional Premium Liability clauses which 
require that the Society pay additional premiums if paid claims and case reserves exceed certain 
pre-determined levels. The Society accrues such additional premiums based upon current 
actuarial estimates of ultimate loss experience. 



Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2008 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 

The provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses represents an estimate of the ultimate 
gross amounts payable for all claims, including investigation costs and the projected final 
settlement of claims incurred prior to the balance sheet date. The provision for unpaid claims 
and adjustment expenses is calculated in accordance with accepted actuarial practice in Canada 
taking into consideration the time value of money and explicit provisions for adverse deviation. 
The estimates of loss activity are, by necessity, subject to uncertainty and are derived from a 
wide range of possible outcomes. These estimates are continually reviewed as additional 
information affecting the estimated quantum of claims settlement is obtained. All changes in 
estimated claim amounts are recorded as incurred claims in the period in which the change in 
estimate is determined. 

The amounts recoverable from reinsurers are calculated based upon the same principles as the 
gross liability and are reflected as an asset in the balance sheet. 

Changes in accounting policies 

Capital Disclosures and Financial Instrument Disclosure and Presentation 

On January 1, 2008, the Society adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 
(“CICA”) Handbook Sections: Section 1535, Capital Disclosures; Section 3862, Financial 
Instruments – Disclosure and Presentation, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments 
Presentation. 

Handbook Section 1535 requires the disclosure of objectives, policies and procedures for 
managing capital; information on what the entity regards as capital; whether the entity has 
complied with any capital requirements; and the consequences of non-compliance with these 
capital requirements. 

Handbook Sections 3862 and 3863 replace Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments – 
Disclosure and Presentation. Section 3863 carries forward unchanged the presentation 
requirements of Section 3861 while Section 3862 requires enhanced financial instrument 
disclosures of the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and how the 
entity manages those risks.  

The new required disclosures are included in Notes 9 and 10. 

Future accounting changes 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly 
accountable enterprises will be required to adopt IFRS. IFRS will replace current Canadian GAAP 
for those enterprises. The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions and the Financial 
Services Commission of Ontario have confirmed that a reciprocal is considered a publicly 
accountable enterprise and is expected to adopt IFRS in accordance with the AcSB 
requirements. For the Society, IFRS will be effective for the annual period commencing 
January 1, 2011, including the preparation and reporting of one year of comparative figures. 
The Society is currently in the process of evaluating the impacts and implications of its 
conversion to IFRS.  
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3. Investments 

a) The Society's investments consist of the following:   

2008 2007
Fair value Fair value

and Amortized and Amortized
carrying value cost carrying value cost

$ $ $ $

Bonds 30,737,108  29,361,400  24,874,410 24,782,346 
Short term

investments 14,371,754  14,371,754  13,015,785 13,015,785 
45,108,862  43,733,154  37,890,195 37,798,131 

 
The difference between amortized cost and market value of the AFS investments in Bonds 
consists of gross unrealized gains of $1,450,230 (2007: $243,198) and losses of ($74,522) 
(2007: ($151,134)). 

Bonds have an average effective interest market yield of 3.01% (2007: 4.39% market 
yield). The Society limits its long-term investments to securities issued or guaranteed by the 
Government of Canada, any province of Canada or Canadian corporations. 

Short-term investments are invested in securities issued by the Government of Canada or a 
Canadian Province having a rating of A or better, or a Canadian Chartered Bank having a 
rating of R-1 or better. These securities have a maturity of less than 1 year from the 
purchase date. 

b) Maturity profile of bonds as at December 31: 

2008 2007
Fair Fair

value value
$ $

Under 1 year 2,042,208    2,213,822   
1 to 5 years 22,357,029  12,611,326 
Over 5 years 6,337,871    10,049,262 

30,737,108  24,874,410 

 
The maturity profile of short term investments is 100% under 1 year for both 2008 and 
2007.  



Canadian Lawyers Liability Assurance Society 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2008 
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3. Investments (continued) 

c) Net investment income has the following components: 

2008 2007
$ $

Interest income
Bonds 1,248,254  1,077,187 
Cash, cash equivalent and short-term investments 502,166     649,753    

1,750,420  1,726,940 

Amortization of (premium)/discount on investments (58,132)     (20,568)    
Realized capital gain (loss) -                 -               

1,692,288  1,706,372 
Miscellaneous investment income 1,500         3,065       
Total net investment income 1,693,788  1,709,437 

 

4. Unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 

a) Nature of unpaid claims and adjustments expenses 

The establishment of the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses is based on 
known facts and interpretation of circumstances and is therefore a complex and dynamic 
process influenced by a large variety of factors. These factors include the Society’s 
experience with similar cases and historical trends involving claim payment patterns, loss 
payments, pending levels of unpaid claims, claims severity and claim frequency patterns. 

Other factors include the continually evolving and changing regulatory and legal 
environment, actuarial studies, professional experience and expertise of the Society’s 
consultants retained to handle individual claims, the quality of the data used for projection 
purposes, existing claims management practices including claims handling and settlement 
practices, the effect of inflationary trends on future claims settlement costs, court decisions, 
economic conditions and public attitudes. In addition, time can be a critical part of the 
provision determination. The longer the span between the incidence of a loss and the 
payment or settlement of the claims, the more variable the ultimate settlement amount can 
be. 

Consequently, the establishment of the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 
process relies on the judgment and opinions of a large number of individuals, on historical 
precedent and trends, on prevailing legal, economic, social and regulatory trends and on 
expectations as to future developments. The process of determining the provisions 
necessarily involves risks that the actual results will deviate, perhaps materially, from the 
best estimates made. 
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4. Unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (continued) 

b) Activity in the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses is summarized as 
follows:  

2008 2007
$ $

Provision for unpaid claims and adjustments 
expense, beginning of year

Gross 80,968,000  77,525,000    
Reinsurance ceded 48,647,000  50,584,000    
Net provisions, beginning of year 32,321,000  26,941,000    

Net incurred claims and claim adjustment 
expenses

Provision for current year claims made 8,455,000    9,788,000      
Increase (decrease) in provision for 

prior year claims made (5,039,453)  (5,355,121)    
Increase (decrease) in provision

due to discount rate change 1,101,000    462,000         
Total net incurred 4,516,547    4,894,879      

Transitional adjustment to opening policy liabilities (1,803,547)  847,000         

Net payment attributable to
Current year claims made -                   -                   
Prior years' claims made (1,803,547)  (361,879)       
Total net payments (1,803,547)  (361,879)       

Net provision for unpaid claims and adjustments
expenses, end of year 35,034,000  32,321,000    

Reinsurance ceded, end of year 48,477,000  48,647,000    
Gross provision for unpaid claims and

adjustments expenses, end of year 83,511,000  80,968,000    

 
c) Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses 

The fair value of unpaid claims and adjustment expenses, gross and recoverable from 
reinsurers, is not practicable to determine with sufficient reliability. Under accepted actuarial 
practice in Canada, the appropriate value of the claims liabilities is the discounted value of 
such liabilities plus the provision for adverse deviation (“PFAD”). 
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$

4. Unpaid claims and adjustment expenses (continued) 

December 31, 2008 

Value per
Provisions accepted

Discounted for adverse actuarial
Undiscounted at 3.0% deviation practice

$ $ $

Provision for unpaid
claims and adjustment
expenses

Gross 81,493,149    71,023,000    9,488,000    80,511,000    
Recoverable from

reinsurers 48,106,258    41,981,000    3,496,000    45,477,000    
Net 33,386,891    29,042,000    5,992,000    35,034,000    

 
December 31, 2007 

Value per
Provisions accepted

Discounted for adverse actuarial
Undiscounted at 4.0% deviation practice

$ $ $
Provision for unpaid

claims and adjustment
expenses

Gross 85,736,000      71,481,000      9,487,000      80,968,000      
Recoverable from

reinsurers 53,826,000      44,941,000      3,706,000      48,647,000      
Net 31,910,000      26,540,000      5,781,000      32,321,000      

$

 

5. Premiums receivable 

All subscribers are large reputable Canadian law firms, and no significant credit risk is expected.  
All amounts are due by January 1, 2009. 

6. Reinsurance program 

a) The Society has obtained proportional reinsurance coverage which limits its net liability to a 
maximum amount of $11,850,000 effective July 1, 2008 (July 1, 2007: $10,500,000) on any 
one loss. 

b) Colchester Reinsurance Limited is an off-shore captive reinsurer domiciled in Barbados. The 
shareholders of Colchester are twelve Toronto based legal firms or their related service 
corporations. Those twelve shareholders are unrelated to each other. However, each of 
Colchester’s shareholders is, or is related to certain of the Society’s subscribers. On July 1, 
2008, Colchester received from the Society premiums of $2,248,950 (July 1, 2007: 
$2,600,748). 
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6. Reinsurance program (continued) 

b) (continued) 

Colchester has provided aggregate stop-loss reinsurance protection for a portion of the 
Society’s retained risk. On July 1, 2008 (and July 1, 2007), this reinsurance had an 
attachment point of $15,000,000 and an annual aggregate limit of $25,000,000 and applied 
to 100% of the Society’s net liability for that portion of each loss which is in excess of 
$250,000 ground up. 

c) Reinsurance does not discharge the primary liability of the Society.  

7. Income taxes 

The Society is a reciprocal as defined under Part XIII of the Insurance Act of Ontario. 
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is made in these financial statements. 

8. Subscribers’ equity 

In accordance with the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement, subscribers were not obliged 
to contribute any amounts to the Society in the form of a capital contribution. The subscribers’ 
surplus therefore represents cumulative surplus and may be used to cover potential future 
catastrophe claims or reduce future premiums, if appropriate. The Agreement provides that 
additional assessments may be made to cover the actual loss, claims and costs experienced by 
the Society. 

9. Financial instrument risk management  

The Society has policies related to the identification, monitoring and mitigation of risks 
associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are credit 
risk, liquidity risk and market risk (interest rate, equity and currency). The following describes 
how the Society manages each of these risks. 

a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of debtors to make payments when due. 
Credit risks are primarily associated with invested assets and amounts due from 
policyholders and reinsurance counterparties. The investment portfolio’s exposure to credit 
risk is managed through policies and procedures including a credit evaluation by the 
investment manager and investment guidelines which specify investment quality and 
exposure limits. The portfolio is monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. Premiums 
due from policyholders present minimal risk due to the short term nature of the receivable 
and the historic/financial relationship with the Society as a Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. 
The Society evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of 
credit risk of the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from their 
insolvency. The Society believes that it has made appropriate provision for any such losses, 
and therefore, no material credit risk exists. One of the primary reinsurers is Colchester 
Reinsurance Limited as discussed in Note 6. The credit risk related to Colchester is managed 
by maintaining a trust account and a quarterly review of their financial condition.  
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9. Financial instrument risk management (continued) 

a) Credit risk (continued) 

i) Exposure to credit risk 

The following table summarizes the exposure to credit risk related to financial 
instruments and certain insurance assets at carrying value.    

2008
$

 
Premiums receivable 45,108,862    
Interest income due and accrued 248,097         
Premiums receivable 6,505,277      
Reinsurance recoverable 10,738,527    
Provision for unpaid claims and adjustment

expenses recoverable from reinsurers 45,477,000    
Total credit exposure 108,077,763 

 
ii) Concentration of credit risk 

The Society utilizes an investment policy to minimize the concentration of credit risk by 
ensuring diversification across asset classes. The following table summarizes the 
distribution of investments by credit risk: 

2008
%

 
Bonds, treasury bills and cash (< 1 year) 6.6                 
Canadas (> 1 year) 42.1               
Provincials (> 1 year) 37.0               
Corporates (> 1 year) 14.3               
Total portfolio 100.0             

 
b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations 
as they come due. The primary potential cash outflow is the payment of insurance claims 
and is represented by the provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses liability on 
the balance sheet. In order to manage the liquidity risk associated with this liability, an 
investment policy is in place which requires that a material portion of the investment 
portfolio be maintained in short-term investments. A summary of the invested assets by 
term to maturity is provided at Note 3. 

c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such 
as interest rates, equity markets and foreign currency rates. The primary market risk 
exposures are discussed below. 

i) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk of financial loss arising from changes in interest rates. 
Fluctuations in interest rates will impact the market value of the fixed income portion of 
the investment portfolio. Interest rate fluctuations may create unrealized gains or losses 
which are recorded as OCI, however, these assets are ordinarily held until maturity 
which would result in a recovery of par value. A portion of these assets support the net 
provision for unpaid claims and adjustment expenses which is calculated, in part, using a 
discount factor based on the market rate of return of the investment portfolio.  
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9.  Financial Instrument Risk Management (continued) 

c) Market risk (continued) 

i) Interest rate risk (continued) 

The Society is exposed to interest rate risk if the cash flows from the investments are 
not matched to the liabilities that they support. This risk is partially mitigated by the 
investment policy which specifies that the timing of the settlement of unpaid claims be 
considered when selecting the duration of invested assets.  

The estimated impact of a 1% increase in interest rates would decrease the market 
value of the fixed income portion of the investment portfolio by ($1,049,962) which 
would be recorded in OCI. This impact would be more than offset on an economic basis 
by a decrease in the estimated unpaid claims and adjustment expense of ($1,515,953) 
recorded through net income. Conversely, a 1% decrease in interest rates would 
increase the market value of the fixed income portion of the investment portfolio by 
$1,283,812 which would be recorded in OCI. This impact would be more than offset on 
an economic basis by an increase in the estimated unpaid claims and adjustment 
expense of $1,642,089 recorded through net income. 

ii) Equity risk 

Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from 
changes in equity markets. To mitigate this risk, the Society’s investment policy does 
not allow exposure to equity markets and the Society had $Nil equity holdings as at 
December 31, 2008. 

iii) Currency risk 

The Society does not have any material exposure to foreign currency.  

10. Surplus management and adequacy 

Subscribers’ Equity is comprised of Surplus and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. At 
December 31, 2008 the Subscribers’ Equity was $21,399,377. The Society’s objectives for the 
management of surplus are for the prudent operation of the reciprocal and to provide relatively 
predictable premium costs for its members over time. A surplus management policy is approved 
by the Board of Directors which oversees the surplus management process.   

As a reciprocal insurance exchange, the requirement for surplus is lower than that of an 
incorporated insurance company. A reciprocal may rely on the contractual agreement among its 
members to contribute to the losses incurred by other members and to make assessments for 
additional contributions to surplus if required and accordingly, can rely on the credit worthiness 
of its subscribers.  

The Society is regulated by the Financial Services Commission of Ontario (FSCO) which expects 
incorporated insurance companies to meet a Minimum Capital Test (MCT) ratio of capital 
available to capital required of at least 150%. However, the minimum regulatory standard for 
reciprocals in Ontario is adjusted equity exceeding $50,000. The Society’s practice is to 
maintain a surplus level which is significantly higher than the regulatory minimum and as at 
December 31, 2008 exceeded the MCT requirement. The Society’s surplus adequacy is 
evaluated regularly and this evaluation takes into account the gross exposure to risk, the level 
and nature of reinsurance purchased and the resulting net exposure to members. Input from 
the appointed actuary, which includes an assessment of loss volatility, is factored into this 
evaluation. 
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11. Fair value disclosure 

The fair value of the following classes of financial instruments is deemed to approximate 
carrying value due to the immediate or short-term maturity of the financial instruments. 

a) Cash at Bank 
b) Interest income due and accrued 
c) Premiums receivable  
d) Reinsurance recoverable 
e) Due to reinsurers 
f) Accounts payable and accrued charges 
g) Premium taxes payable 

12. Contingencies 

Certain of the Society's reinsurers have disputed their obligation to reimburse the Society for 
their share of a large claim settled in late 2005. The dispute is proceeding to binding arbitration 
with resolution expected in 2009. Management of the Society is confident that the amount 
reflected as a reinsurance recoverable in the financial statements will ultimately be collected. It 
is possible that changes in future conditions could require a change in the recognized amount. 

13. Comparative figures 

Certain of the prior years figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s 
presentation. 

 























PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 

[Draft example of a Restrictions on Securities Trading Policy that requires the 
maintenance of a Restricted Trading List.  This example is provided to CLLAS 
Members for information purposes only to assist them in reviewing or developing 
their own policies on securities trading.  CLLAS is not endorsing or recommending 
that CLLAS Members adopt the provisions of this example.] 

 

Restrictions on Securities Trading Policy 

GENERAL 
Purpose: 
To set out the Firm's policy relating to the purchase or sale of securities of publicly-
traded entities. 

Application of Policy: 
This policy applies to everyone who works at the firm (that is, all partners, employees 
and others who work at the firm, including lawyers, articling and summer students, 
secretaries, law clerks, support staff and administrative staff) (collectively "Firm 
Personnel")) and covers all purchases and sales of securities of publicly-traded entities 
(other than as described below).  It is designed to safeguard against the appearance of 
impropriety and embarrassment to the Firm, and is similar to policies adopted by other 
law firms.  We will periodically review the effectiveness of this policy as developments 
occur in this area and as experience is acquired. 

The Policy is to be read in conjunction with the Confidentiality and Insider Trading 
Policy. 

POLICY 
Restrictions on Securities Trading: 
It is possible that Firm Personnel may innocently engage in trading activities which, 
although not illegal (because of the absence of confidential inside information on the part 
of the particular person), could give rise to the appearance of impropriety, and result in 
embarrassment to the Firm, because confidential inside information is known to one or 
more other persons in the Firm.  There is also a risk that it would be argued that 
information known to one member of the Firm may be presumed to be known to all 
members of the Firm. 

In order to avoid such any event, Firm Personnel must not either buy or sell securities 
(other than securities of mutual funds, guaranteed investment certificates, Canada 
Savings Bonds or other Canadian government bonds or treasury bill investments) of any 
publicly traded entity (whether in Canada, the U.S. or elsewhere) that is identified on the 
"Restricted List" (see below) without written clearance from one of the persons 



designated by the Chief Executive Officer to administer this policy from time to time 
(each a "Compliance Officer"). 

It is intended that these trading restrictions will extend to cover any situation where Firm 
Personnel participate in investment decisions of other persons (such as a spouse, other 
relative or friend or a trust, estate or charitable organization), but not any securities 
transactions effected by such persons where Firm Personnel does not participate in the 
investment decision. 

In some cases, Firm Personnel may give an investment counsel discretion to trade in 
securities on their behalf without prior consultation as to specific transactions.  Trades 
under such arrangements are not subject to this policy although Firm Personnel should be 
aware they may be required to establish in the case of any particular trade that the 
investment counsel did not in fact consult them in advance of making the trade. 

Restricted List: 
A "Restricted List" of publicly-traded entities is maintained by the Firm, but will not be 
made available to lawyers generally.  The Restricted List has essentially two categories: 

(1) Publicly-traded entities which are current clients of the Firm or of which a 
member of the Firm is appointed a director or a person in a similar capacity; and 

(2) Other publicly-traded entities about which one or more persons in the Firm 
currently possess material non-public information because of the Firm's involvement or 
proposed involvement in a specific transaction.  This category would include entities 
which, although not current clients, are known by one or more persons in the Firm to be 
involved in a transaction that is likely to affect the market price of the entity's securities 
or could affect the decision of a reasonable investor to purchase or sell securities of the 
entity (for example, a target in a take-over bid). 

The Restricted List will identify one or more partners (the "Responsible Partner") for 
each entity named on the list. 

In either case, the Responsible Partner(s) or the lawyer who becomes aware of the 
information described in (2) above is responsible for ensuring that in the appropriate 
circumstances the entity is included on or removed from the Restricted List. 

Clearance Procedure: 
A request for clearance to purchase or sell securities of a publicly-traded entity may be 
made to a Compliance Officer by telephone, e-mail or in person. 

Upon receiving such a request, the Compliance Officer will: 

(a) If necessary, confirm the appropriate details of the proposed trade with the lawyer 
who has made the request; 
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(b) Record in writing in a log maintained for that purpose the date and time of the 
request and the identity of the person making the request; 

(c) If the entity is not on the Restricted List, promptly give written clearance for the 
proposed trade to the person making the request; 

(d) If the entity is on the Restricted List, request the Responsible Partner for 
instructions whether the proposed trade may take place and, upon receiving such 
instructions, promptly notify the person making the request in writing whether 
clearance for the proposed trade is given; and 

(e) Record in the log each step taken to address the request. 

If the Responsible Partner is in any doubt about the appropriateness of the proposed 
trade, the Responsible Partner will consult with a senior securities partner in the Firm 
before instructing the Compliance Officer whether clearance is given. 

Unless and until clearance is given, the trade may not be take place.  If clearance is given, 
the trade order must be given within [3] business days after the person is notified thereof.  
If for any reason the trade order is not given within that time frame, the trade may not be 
made without a further clearance. 

Acknowledgement: 
To ensure that each of us is familiar with this policy, all Firm Personnel are asked to 
review and to sign and send to , a written acknowledgement thereof. 

Consultation: 
While compliance with this policy and the law is an individual responsibility, interpretive 
questions may arise such as whether certain information is material.  A member of 
management should be consulted on such questions. 
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PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 

[Draft example of a Restrictions on Securities Trading Policy that does not require 
the maintenance of a Restricted Trading List and, instead, relies on conflicts 
searches.  This example is provided to CLLAS Members for information purposes 
only to assist them in reviewing or developing their own policies on securities 
trading.  CLLAS is not endorsing or recommending that CLLAS Members adopt 
the provisions of this example.] 

Restrictions on Securities Trading Policy 

 

GENERAL 
Purpose: 
To set out the Firm's policy relating to the purchase or sale of securities of publicly-
traded entities. 

Application of Policy: 
This policy applies to everyone who works at the firm (that is, all partners, employees 
and others who work at the firm, including lawyers, articling and summer students, 
secretaries, law clerks, support staff and administrative staff) (collectively "Firm 
Personnel")) and covers all purchases and sales of securities of publicly-traded entities 
(other than as described below).  It is designed to safeguard against the appearance of 
impropriety and embarrassment to the Firm, and is similar to policies adopted by other 
law firms.  We will periodically review the effectiveness of this policy as developments 
occur in this area and as experience is acquired. 

The Policy is to be read in conjunction with the Confidentiality and Insider Trading 
Policy. 

POLICY 
Restrictions on Securities Trading: 
It is possible that Firm Personnel may innocently engage in trading activities which, 
although not illegal (because of the absence of confidential inside information on the part 
of the particular person), could give rise to the appearance of impropriety, and result in 
embarrassment to the Firm, because confidential inside information is known to one or 
more other persons in the Firm.  There is also a risk that it would be argued that 
information known to one member of the Firm may be presumed to be known to all 
members of the Firm. 

In order to avoid such an event, Firm Personnel must not either buy or sell securities 
(other than securities of mutual funds, guaranteed investment certificates, Canada 
Savings Bonds or other Canadian government bonds or treasury bill investments) of any 



publicly traded entity (whether in Canada, the U.S. or elsewhere) without first following 
the clearance procedure described below. 

It is intended that these trading restrictions will extend to cover any situation where Firm 
Personnel participate in investment decisions of other persons (such as a spouse, other 
relative or friend or a trust, estate or charitable organization), but not any securities 
transactions effected by such persons where Firm Personnel does not participate in the 
investment decision. 

In some cases, Firm Personnel may give an investment counsel discretion to trade in 
securities on their behalf without prior consultation as to specific transactions.  Trades 
under such arrangements are not subject to this policy although Firm Personnel should be 
aware they may be required to establish in the case of any particular trade that the 
investment counsel did not in fact consult them in advance of making the trade. 

Clearance Procedure: 
[Option A:  each lawyer or staff member is responsible for clearing his or her 
proposed trades.] 

Before trading (i.e. buying or selling) any security of a publicly traded entity, you must 
order a Conflicts Search from Records Management against the name of the publicly 
traded entity.  [You must identify this as a Securities Trading Search.] 

You may receive a call or email from [x] (the Confidential Matter Partner) advising you 
that the trade cannot proceed. 

Upon receiving the Conflicts Search, check to see if the entity is listed as either a client, 
an adverse party, or a party with some other interest.   

If the entity is not listed on the Conflicts Search and you have not received a call or email 
from [x] advising you that the trade cannot proceed, you may trade in the securities of the 
entity; provided that the trade order is given within [3] business days from the date of the 
Conflicts Search. 

If the entity is listed on the Conflicts Search and you have not received a call or email 
from [x] advising you that the trade cannot proceed, you must contact the Responsible 
Lawyer shown beside the name of the entity on the Conflicts Search for instructions as to 
whether or not the proposed trade may take place.  Unless and until clearance is given, 
the trade may not be take place.  If the Responsible Lawyer is in any doubt about the 
appropriateness of the proposed trade, the Responsible Lawyer will consult with a senior 
securities partner in the Firm before instructing you whether clearance is given.  The 
Responsible Lawyer will send an email to you stating whether or not the proposed trade 
may take place. 

If clearance is given, the trade order must be given within [3] business days from the date 
of the Conflicts Search.  If for any reason the trade order is not given within that time 
frame, the trade may not be made without a further clearance. 
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A copy of the Conflicts Search and any emails from Responsible Lawyers will be 
[retained by the lawyer/staff member] [send to [x] – e.g. the Compliance Officer]. 

[Option B: Compliance Officer is responsible for clearing proposed trades.] 

Before trading (i.e. buying or selling) any security of a publicly traded entity, you must 
request clearance from the Compliance Officer.  Unless and until clearance is given, the 
trade may not be take place. 

Upon receiving such a request, the Compliance Officer will order a Conflicts Search from 
Records Management against the name of the publicly traded entity.   

The Compliance Officer may receive a call or email from [x] (the Confidential Matter 
Partner) advising that the proposed trade cannot proceed. 

Upon receiving the Conflicts Search, the Compliance Officer will check to see if the 
entity is listed as either a client, an adverse party, or a party with some other interest.   

If the entity is not listed on the Conflicts Search and the Compliance Officer has not 
received a call or email from [x] advising that the trade cannot proceed, the Compliance 
Officer will advise you by email that you may trade in the securities of the entity; 
provided that the trade order is given within [3] business days from the date of the 
clearance email. 

If the entity is listed on the Conflicts Search and the Compliance Officer has not received 
a call or email from [x] advising that the trade cannot proceed, the Compliance Officer 
will contact the Responsible Lawyer shown beside the name of the entity on the Conflicts 
Search for instructions as to whether or not the proposed trade may take place.  If the 
Responsible Lawyer or Compliance Officer are in any doubt about the appropriateness of 
the proposed trade, the Responsible Lawyer and the Compliance Officer will consult with 
a senior securities partner in the Firm before instructing the requesting lawyer or staff 
member whether clearance is given.  The Responsible Lawyer will send an email to the 
Compliance Officer stating whether or not the proposed trade may take place. 

The Compliance Officer will advise the lawyer or staff member by email whether or not 
clearance has been given.  If clearance is given, the trade order must be given within [3] 
business days from the date of the clearance email.  If for any reason the trade order is 
not given within that time frame, the trade may not be made without a further clearance. 

A copy of the Conflicts Search and any emails from Responsible Lawyers will be 
retained by the Compliance Officer. 

Acknowledgement: 
To ensure that each of us is familiar with this policy, all Firm Personnel are asked to 
review and to sign and send to , a written acknowledgement thereof. 
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Consultation: 
While compliance with this policy and the law is an individual responsibility, interpretive 
questions may arise such as whether certain information is material.  A member of 
management should be consulted on such questions. 
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